
City of Kelowna
Regular Council Meeting

AGENDA
 

Tuesday, December 9, 2014

6:00 pm

Council Chamber

City Hall, 1435 Water Street

Pages

1. Call to Order

2. Prayer

A Prayer will be offered by Councillor DeHart.

3. Confirmation of Minutes 1 - 13

Public Hearing - November 4, 2014
Regular Meeting - November 4, 2014

4. Bylaws Considered at Public Hearing

4.1 Bylaw No. 11025 (Z14-0044) - 1250-1298 Ellis Street, Whitworth Holdings Ltd. 14 - 14

To give Bylaw No. 11025 second &  third readings, and adoption, in order to
rezone the subject property from the C10 - Service Commercial zone to the
C10lp - Service Commercial (Liquor Primary) zone.

4.2 Bylaw No. 11026 (TA14-0019) - Breweries and Distilleries, Minor in C3, C6 and
C10 Zones

15 - 15

To give Bylaw No. 11026 second and third readings in order to inlcude
'Breweries and Distilleries, minor' as a principle use in the C3, C6 and C10
zones.

4.3 Bylaw No. 11027 (OCP14-0019) - (W of) Mountainside Drive, Cedar Creek
Developments Ltd.

16 - 17

Requires a majority of all members of Council (5).

To give Bylaw No. 11027 second and third readings in order to change the
future land use designations of the subject property from the Single/Two Unit
Residential designation to the Single/Two Unit Residential - Hillside and the
Major Park/Open Space designations and from the Major Park and Open Space
designation to the Single/Two Unit Residential - Hillside designation.



4.4 Bylaw No. 11028 (Z14-0036) - (W of) Mountainside Drive, Cedar Creek
Developments Ltd.

18 - 19

To give Bylaw No. 11028 second and third readings in order to rezone the
subject property from the RU4 - Low Density Cluster Housing zone to the RU1h
- Large Lot Housing (Hillside Area), P3 - Parks and Open Space and CD2 -
Kettle Valley Comprehensive Residential Development zones and from the P3 -
Parks and Open Space zone to the RU1h - Large Lot Housing (Hillside Area)
zone.

4.5 Bylaw No. 11029 (OCP14-0021) - 5505 Chute Lake Road, Calcan Investements
Ltd.

20 - 22

Requires a majority of all members of Council (5).

To give Bylaw No. 11029 second and third readings in order to change the
future land use designation of part of the subject property from the Major
Park &  Open Space designation to the Single/Two Unit Residential Hillside
designation; from the Single/Two Unit Residential designation to the Major
Park &  Open Space designation; form the Multiple Unit Residential (Cluster
Housing) designation to the Single/Tow Unit Residential - Hillside designation;
from the Multiple Unit Residential (Cluster Housing) designation to the Major
Park &  Open Space designation; from the Single/Two Unit Residential
designation to the Single/Two Unit Residential Hillside designation.

4.6 Bylaw No. 11030 (Z14-0041) - 5505 Chute Lake Road, Calcan Investements Ltd. 23 - 26

To give Bylaw No. 11030 second and third readings in order to rezone part of
the subject property from the P3 - Parks and Open Space zone to the RH1 -
Hillside Large Lot Residential zone; from the RH1 - Hillside Large Lot
Residential zone to the P3 - Parks and Open Space; from the RH3 - Hillside
Cluster Housing zone to the RH1 - Hillside Large Lot Residentia zone; from the
RH3 - Hillside Cluster Housing zone to the P3 - Parks and Open Space zone and
from the RH1 - Hillside Large Lot Residential zone to the RH3 - Hillside Cluster
Housing zone.

4.7 Bylaw No. 11031 (OCP14-0015) - 1501 & 1511 Tower Ranch Drive and 2160
Tower Ranch Boulevard, Parkbridge Lifestyle Communities Inc., City of
Kelowna & 0977415 BC Ltd.

27 - 33

Requires a majority of all members of Council (5).

To give Bylaw No. 11031 second and third readings in order to change the
future land use designation of a portion of the subject properties from MRL –
Multiple Unit Residential (Low Density) to S2RES – Single/Two Unit Residential;
PARK - Park and Open Space (public) to S2RES – Single / Two Unit
Residential; S2RESH – Single/Two Unit Residential- Hillside to MRL – Multiple
Unit Residential (Low Density); S2RESH – Single/Two Unit Residential- Hillside
to PARK – Major Park and Open Space (public); and PARK – Park and Open
Space (public) to S2RESH – Single / Two Unit Residential – Hillside;  from



S2RES – Single/Two Unit Residential to PARK - Park and Open Space (public);
from PARK – Park and Open Space (public) to S2RES – Single/Two Unit
Residential; from S2RES – Single/Two Unit Residential to S2RESH -
Single/Two Unit Residential - Hillside; from S2RESH - Single/Two Unit
Residential – Hillside to S2RESH - Single/Two Unit Residential; and from REC –
Private Recreation (private) to S2RESH – Single/Two Unit Residential – Hillside;
from S2RESH – Single/Two Unit Residential - Hillside to PARK – Major Park and
Open Space (public); from S2RESH – Single/Two Unit Residential – Hillside to-
PSU - Public Services / Utilities; from Private Recreation (private) to- PSU -
Public Services / Utilities; and from PARK - Major Park and Open Space
(public) to S2RESH – Single/Two Unit Residential – Hillside; and from PARK -
Major Park and Open Space (public) to S2RES – Single/Two Unit Residential;
and from Public Service Utilities (PSU) to Single/Two Unit Residential – Hillside
(S2RESH); and from Resource Protection Area (REP) to Single/Two Unit
Residential – Hillside (S2RESH).

4.8 Bylaw No. 11032 (OCP14-0011) - 1280 Glenmore Drive, 561655 BC Ltd. 34 - 35

Requires a majority of all members of Council (5).

To give Bylaw No. 11032 second and third readings in order to change the
future land use designation of a portion of the subject property from the MRL
- Multiple Residential Low Density designation to the S2RES - Single/Two Unit
Residential designation.

4.9 Bylaw No. 11033 (Z14-0026) - 1280 Glenmore Road, 561655 BC Ltd. 36 - 37

To give Bylaw No. 11033 second and third readings in order to rezone a
portionof the subject property from the RU1 - Large Lot Housing zone to the
RM2 - Low Density Row Housing zone.

5. Notification of Meeting

The City Clerk will provide information as to how the following items on the Agenda
were publicized.

6. Liquor License Application Reports

6.1 Liquor License Application No. LL14-0014 - 1250 Ellis Street, Whitworth
Holdings Ltd.

38 - 63

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
liquor license application to come forward.
To seek Council's support for a liquor primary license.

7. Development Permit and Development Variance Permit Reports

7.1 Development Permit Application No. DP14-0183 - 1250 Ellis Street, Whitworth
Holdings Ltd.

64 - 88



To consider a Development Permit to permit a brew pub in the old cigar
factory building located at 1250 Ellis Street.

7.2 Development Variance Permit Application No. DVP14-0219 - 1511 Tower Ranch
Drive (Phase 1), Parkbridge Lifestyle Communities Inc.

89 - 106

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.
To consider a request by the applicant to reduce the minimum front yard
setback from 4.5 m permitted to 3.0 m proposed for 27 single unit bareland
strata lots in the proposed Phase I development and to reduce the minimum
front yard setback from 4.5 m permitted to 1.5 m proposed for one Lot in the
same phase, in order to facilitate the placement of pillars for a front porch.

7.3 Temporary Use Permit Application No. TUP14-0005 - 2092 Enterprise Way,
0838232 BC Ltd.

107 - 132

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required temporary use to come forward.
To seek a Temporary Use Permit to allow 2,111m2 of the west portion of the
existing building on the subject property to be used as a thrift store.for the sale
of used or discontinued construction material and home decor for the operation
of “ReStore” through the organization Habitat for Humanity.

7.4 Development Variance Permit Application No. DVP14-0233 - 204 Poplar Point
Drive, Rodney & Jody Hazard

133 - 150

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.
To vary the Okanagan Lake Sight Lines from 60º required to 26º proposed.

7.5 Development Variance Permit Application No. DVP14-0179 - 1886 Parkview
Crescent, Lifestyles Strata Management

151 - 163

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.

To consider a Development Variance Permit application to vary the maximum
combined height of a fence on top of a retaining wall from 2.0 permitted to
3.2 m proposed.

7.6 Development Permit Application No. DP14-0192 & Development Variance
Permit Application No. DVP14-0241 - 1982 Kane Road, Raisanen Construction
Ltd.

164 - 182

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the



required variance(s) to come forward.
To consider a Development Permit and Development Variance Permit
application for the form and character of a commercial development on the
subject property.

7.7 Development Variance Permit Application No. DVP14-0166 - 924 Fairway
Crescent, Jocelyn & Bradley Airey

183 - 196

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.

To consider staff’s recommendation to NOT authorize a Development Variance
Permit application to vary the front yard from 6.0 m permitted to 3.0 m
proposed.

7.8 Development Variance Permit Application No. DVP14-0170 - 1085 Westpoint
Drive, Joshua Richmond

197 - 217

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.

To seek a Development Variance Permit to vary the side yard setback along
the east property line from 2.0m required to 0.0m proposed.

7.9 Development Variance Permit Application No. DVP14-0229 - 3358 Larkspur
Court, Peter Schumann & Nada Critchlow

218 - 225

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.

To obtain approval for a Development Variance Permit to vary the height of a
fence from 2.0 m maximum height to 3.1 m proposed.

8. Reminders

9. Termination



1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



CD2

RH3

P3

RH1

RINDLE
CT

MO
UN

TA
IN

SI
DE

DR ¯

This map is for general information only.
The City of Kelowna does not guarantee its
accuracy. All information should be verified.

MAP "B" PROPOSED ZONING

Rev. Nov 27, 2014

P3 to RH1
RH1 to P3
RH1 to RH3
RH3 to P3
RH3 to RH1

Zoning
Legal Parcel
Proposed Property Lines

File #Z14-0041   Map#1

0 4020 Metres

Rezone a portion of the subject property
from RH3 Hillside Cluster Housing
to P3 Parks and Open Space.

Subject Property Notes:

Rezone portions of the subject property
from RH3 Hillside Cluster Housing
to RH1 Hillside Large Lot Residential.

Subject Property Notes:

Rezone a portion of the subject property
from RH1 Hillside Large Lot Residential 
to RH3 Hillside Cluster Housing.

Subject Property Notes:

Rezone portions of the subject property
from P3 Parks and Open Space
to RH1 Hillside Large Lot Residential.

Subject Property Notes:

24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: Sept 26, 2014 

RIM No. 0930-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (AC) 

Application: LL14-0014 Owner: 
Whitworth Holdings Ltd., Inc 
No. BC0767813 

Address: 1250 Ellis Street Applicant: Kyle and Carolyn Nixon 

Subject: Liquor Primary License application to add a Brew Pub.  

Existing OCP Designation: MXR – Mixed Use (Residential / Commercial) 

Existing Zone: C10 – Service Commercial 

Proposed Zone: C10lp/rls – Service Commercial (Liquor Primary / Retail Liquor 
Sales) 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council directs staff to forward the following recommendation to the Provincial Liquor 
Control and Licensing Branch (LCLB): 
 
In accordance with Section 53 of the Liquor Control and Licensing Regulation and Council Policy 
#359, be it resolved THAT: 
 
Council’s comments on the Liquor Control & Licensing Branch (LCLB)’s prescribed considerations 
for the application from the proposed brew pub at 1250 Ellis Street, Kelowna BC, (legally 
described as Lot 1, District Lot 139, ODYD, Plan 660 for a liquor primary application to add a 
brew pub, with an interior capacity of  292 persons and a patio capacity of 38 persons, and hours 
of service from 9:00am-12:00am Sunday to Wednesday and from 9:00am-1:00am Thursday to 
Saturday, are as follows: 
 
a) The potential for noise if the application is approved: 
The space had previous industrial uses. The change in use to a brew pub with a liquor primary 
license is anticipated to have a minor impact in noise in comparison to the previous operation. 
However, noise will increase in the evening hours but there is a significant distance (~85 metres) 
between the proposed brew pub and the closest residential dwelling units (Cannery Lofts). 
Additionally, those residents will not notice any increase in noise relative to the proposed brew 
pub as the Flashbacks nightclub (Liquor Primary establishment with a 2am closing) is located 
between the proposed brew pub and the closest residents. 
 

38



LL14-0014 – Page 2 

 
 

b) The impact on the community if the application is approved: 
The potential for negative impacts is considered to be minimal. Noise will increase in the evening 
hours but the location is appropriate for this land use and will occupy a vacated portion of a 
building. Similar to the Train Station Pub across the intersection of Clement Ave and Ellis Street, 
a liquor licensed establishment and restaurant will increase the vibrancy of the streetscape from 
a vacated parcel.  
  
c) View of residents.  
Council’s comments on the views of residents (if applicable) are as contained within the minutes 
of the meeting at which the application was considered by Council.  The methods used to gather 
views of residents were as per Council Policy #359 “Liquor Licensing Policy & Procedures.” 
 
d) The person capacity and hours of liquor service of the establishment: 
The total person capacity proposed for the interior capacity is  292 persons with a patio capacity 
of 38 persons, and hours of service from 9:00am-midnight Sunday to Wednesday and from 
9:00am-1:00am Thursday to Saturday. 
 
e) Traffic and parking: 
There is amble parking in adjacent private parking lot and surrounding public parking facilities.   
 
f) The proximity of the establishment to other social or recreational facilities and public 
buildings: 
Surrounding social or recreational facilities would not conflict with the proposed establishment. 
The proposed brew pub would support the cultural district in which it is located. The purpose of 
the cultural district is to develop and to enhance the cultural district as a centre for arts and 
entertainment, and a catalyst for community cultural development. The proposed brew pub 
would complement and enhance the entertainment and service value of the area.  
 
g) Recommendation: 
Council recommends that the application for the addition of a liquor primary license to operate a 
brew pub be approved.  

2.0 Purpose 

To seek Council’s support for a liquor primary license. 

3.0 Urban Planning Department 

This application to add a liquor primary license to operate a brew pub represents the next step in 
the approval process for the “Chico’s” brew pub to operate within the currently vacant space. 
This license requires a Council Resolution to be provided to the Liquor Control and Licensing 
Branch. The distance between large liquor primary establishments (greater than 249 people 
capacity) is recommended to be 250 metres according to Council Policy #359. The distance 
between the proposed brew pub and Flashbacks nightclub is approximately 40 metres. The 
distance between Rose’s Pub (liquor primary nightclub) and the newly constructed Tree Brewing 
‘Beer Institute’ is approximately the same 40 metre separation. That license was supported 
because the use was proposed to function as a brewery with lounge occupants rather than a 
traditional liquor primary nightclub. The applicant’s proposed brew pub will also have a 
manufacturing element but will be more focused on a restaurant feel with full food service as 
compared to the ‘Beer Institute’. As such, Staff are supportive of the revitalization of the 
heritage building, the proposed brew pub, and associate liquor primary license application. 

39



LL14-0014 – Page 3 

 
 

4.0 Summary 

4.1 Background 

Staff are administering a number of other applications associated with “Chico’s” as described 
below: 

1. First, the subject property should have had a “Liquor Primary” (LP) use because those 
sub-zones were added in 2003 and the Flashbacks nightclub has operated prior to that 
date. Therefore, Staff have proposed a housekeeping zoning bylaw amendment to correct 
that use.  

2. Second, Staff have proposed a general text amendment to add “breweries & distilleries, 
minor” to all zones that have both a “food primary establishment” and “liquor primary 
establishment” to clarify that producing alcohol in a restaurant setting is permitted from 
a zoning perspective.   

3. Third, a Development Permit has been submitted by the applicant to approve the form 
and character of the proposed brew pub.   

4.2 Proposal 

The intent of this facility is to provide a ‘Family Food Service’. The sole purpose for applying for 
a Liquor Primary License is to be eligible, under the regulations set by the BC Liquor Control and 
Licensing Branch (LCLB) to operate the business along the same lines as a brew pub. According to 
the LCLB, a brew pub must have a Liquor Primary license as well as a Manufacturer (winery, 
distillery, or brewery) License. As part of this liquor licensing application process, the applicant 
has made application for a Manufacturer Brewery license, which does not require a Council 
resolution. As part of the building program to create the brew pub, a Development Permit and 
Development Variance Permit will also be required to address the proposed exterior 
modifications associated with the interior renovations. 

 

Proposed License Summary: 

Proposed Hours of Sale: 

 Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

Open 9:00am 9:00am 9:00am 9:00am 9:00am 9:00am 9:00am 

Close midnight midnight midnight midnight 1:00am 1:00am 1:00am 

 

 

Licensed Area Capacity 

First Floor Sitting area 151 persons 

First Floor outdoor patio area 38 persons 

The Second Floor Mezzanine area 141 persons 

Total Proposed Person Capacity  330 persons* 

*The proposed capacity is based on preliminary floor plans, which are subject to approval by the Building & 
Permitting Branch and the LCLB. 

 

 

 

40



LL14-0014 – Page 4 

 
 

4.3 Site Context   

The subject property is located at the west side of Ellis Street near the intersection of Ellis 
Street and Clement Avenue. 

Adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North CD5 – Multi Purpose Facility Parking Lot 

East I4 – Central Industrial Metal manufacturing 

South C10 – Service Commercial 
Various commercial uses including retail 
and liquor primary nightclub 

West CD5 – Multi Purpose Facility Prospera Place Arena 

 

Subject Property Map: 1250 Ellis Street 

 
 

5.0 Current Development Policies 

5.1 Council Policy #359 – Liquor Licensing Policy and Procedures 

The following sections of Policy #359 are applicable to this application: 

5.1.1 General 
Where appropriate, support alternative entertainment options, and/or establishments which are 
less focused on alcohol consumption (including event-driven establishments, and Food Primary 
establishments with the Patron Participation Entertainment Endorsement) to add a mix of 
entertainment options in Urban Centres. Consider limiting potential community impacts via 
license terms and conditions (hours, capacity, etc). 

 

Location of “Chico’s” Brew 
Pub 

41



LL14-0014 – Page 5 

 
 

5.1.2 Liquor Primary Establishments  

In consideration of new, expanded or relocated Liquor Primary Establishments 
(cabarets/nightclubs, pubs, lounges), the following guidelines should be considered (see table 
below):  
 
5.1.2.1 Siting/Density Guidelines: 

a) No establishment with a person capacity greater than 500 persons should be permitted. 
b) Large establishments (with person capacity greater than 249 persons): 

i) Should only be located within an Urban Centre. 
ii) Should be located a minimum of 250m from another Large establishment. 
iii) Should be located a minimum of 100m from a Medium establishment. 
iv) Should not be located beside a Small establishment. 

c) Medium establishments (with person capacity between 100-249 persons): 
i) Should only be located within an Urban or Village Centre. 
ii) Should be located a minimum of 100m from a Large or Medium establishment. 
iii) Should not be located beside a Small establishment. 

d) Small establishments (with person capacity less than 100 persons): 
i) Should not be located beside another liquor primary establishment 

 
For the purposes of determining proximity, the shortest walking distance (door-to-door) will be 
applied. These distances are meant to guide staff in their recommendations for particular 
applications, however, a number of other factors should be considered, including (but not limited 
to): 

a) Pertinent input from the RCMP; 
b) Vehicular and pedestrian traffic patterns for area and current zoning; 
c) Availability of on-site and off-site parking; proximity of playgrounds, schools, and 

other social facilities; 
d) Surrounding land-uses, and general impact on the local neighbourhood; 
e) Correspondence received from abutting property owners; 
f) Past licensee compliance and performance issues as may be provided by the LCLB. 
 

5.2 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Compact Urban Form.1 Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing 
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done 
by increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 
metre walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) 
through development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 
5.3) in particular and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land 
Use Map 4.1. 

Entertainment Venues.2 Within designated Urban Centres, encourage private-sector 
provision of facilities which diversify the selection of venues and entertainment 
opportunities throughout the city. 

 

 

                                                
1
 Policy 5.3.2 (Development Process Chapter) 

2
 Policy 5.17.1 (Development Process Chapter 5, page 5.21) 

42



LL14-0014 – Page 6 

 
 

6.0 Technical Comments 

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

No comments. 

6.2 Fire Department 

No concerns. 

6.3 Interior Health Authority 

No comments. 

6.4 R.C.M.P. _ Liquor License 

The RCMP support the proposed application provided the licensees are deemed to fit and 
are proper as determined by the BC Liquor Control and Licensing Branch.  The RCMP will 
not oppose the amended times of this application based on the current business model 
which is presented as a casual, family friendly, eatery and brew house. Given the number 
of liquor seats subject of this application, any deviation from the current business model 
towards a night club will have significant resource implications for the police and will not 
be supported 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received: September 11th, 2014  
Date of Public consultation: September 8th 2014 

Report prepared by: 

 
     
Adam Cseke, Urban Planner  
 

Reviewed by:    Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  D. Gilchrist, Divisional Director - 
 Community Planning & Real Estate 

Attachments:  

Subject Property Map 
Applicant Rationale Document 
Provisional Floor Plans 
LCLB Application for Lounge endorsement 

43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: 11/18/2014 

RIM No. 1240-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning Department (AC) 

Application: DP14-0183 Owner: 
Whitworth Holdings Ltd., Inc 
No. BC0767813 

Address: 1250 Ellis St Applicant: Carolyn & Kyle Nixon 

Subject: Development Permit  

Existing OCP Designation: MXR – Mixed Use (Residential / Commercial) 

Existing Zone: C10 – Service Commercial 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorize the issuance of Development Permit No. DP14-0183 for the property 
legally known as Lot 1, District Lot 139, ODYD, Plan 660, located on 1250 Ellis St., Kelowna, BC., 
subject to the following: 

1. The dimensions and siting of the building to be constructed on the land be in general 
accordance with Schedule “A”; 

2. The exterior design and finish of the building to be constructed on the land be in general 
accordance with Schedule “B”; 

3. Landscaping to be provided on the land be in general accordance with Schedule “C”; 

4. Prior to issuance of the Building Permit, the requirements of the Development Engineering 
Branch must be satisfied; 

5. The applicant be required to post with the City, a Landscape Performance Security 
deposit in the form of a “Letter of Credit” in the amount of 125% of the estimated value 
of the landscaping, as determined by a professional landscaper;  

AND FURTHER THAT the applicant be required to complete the above-noted conditions within 180 
days of Council’s approval of the Development Permit Application in order for the permit to be 
issued. 

2.0 Purpose 

To consider a Development Permit to permit a brew pub in the old cigar factory building located 
at 1250 Ellis Street. 

83



DP14-0183 – Page 2 

 

Figure 1: Shows the parking and let-down which is proposed to be 

eliminated. 

3.0 Urban Planning  

3.1 Background 

The subject property is on the City of Kelowna’s Heritage Registry. The original building was built 
in 1912 as offices and a cigar factory for the British North American Tobacco Company, which 
failed in 1914. The building was taken over by the Occidental Fruit Company, which in 1918 
began cannery operations within the building additions located to the south of the main bock. In 
1929, the cannery was bought out by Canadian Canners Ltd. of Hamilton, which operated it until 
it closed in 1960. Since then, Kelowna Machine Works Ltd. and other industrial businesses have 
occupied the building.  
 
The main building is an attractive and ornate brick building which represents some of the boldest 
brickwork of an industrial building within Kelowna. It was built by Charles Clement and designed 
by P.E. Corby. The large northern wing (which a portion is subject to this Development Permit) 
has recently been used for storage and has not been well kept. The original block and northern 
wing are of brick construction, with the exception of a small two-storey addition which was 
finished in stucco.  
 
The original brick is the main architectural significance which has several different types of brick 
work but has since been painted over. The applicant is proposing to restore the heritage features 
of the building (see applicant’s rationale letter) and modify the site to develop a brew pub (see 
attached for drawings).  

3.2 Planning Considerations 
 
While the current parking 
allocated to the portion of the 
building under consideration for 
Development Permit is insufficient, 
it is considered ‘legally non-
conforming’ under the relevant 
legislation. For this reason a 
change in use complying with the 
current zone does not trigger 
additional parking requirements. 
The only official parking stalls are 
located in the front of the property 
adjacent to Ellis Street. The 
primary access for those parking 
stalls is identified in ‘Figure 1’ above. This orientation of parking is dangerous for pedestrians 
and the Development Engineering Branch are requiring the ‘curb cut’ along Ellis Street to be 
raised to prevent vehicular access and improve pedestrian safety. This will also impact the 
adjacent motorcycle service, sales, and repair shop, which has four parking stalls accessed from 
Ellis Street. From an urban design, pedestrian safety, and land use perspective eliminating the 
parking in the front yard with an active street front is encouraged. Cash-in-lieu was not 
considered for the seven parking stalls as it was an engineering requirement to improve 
pedestrian safety. All parties have agreed to the pedestrian improvement works and the 
applicant has agreed to pay for the infrastructure improvements. 
 

84



DP14-0183 – Page 3 

 

Through a collaborative process, Staff has worked with the applicant’s multi-disciplinary team 
and appreciate the quality of the project. This project will help to restore and extend the life of 
this significant heritage building while helping to revitalize this key gateway location. Staff are 
not concerned with reducing parking on this site as there is a nearby public transit exchange 
(~600 metres) as well as adequate parking provided in the surrounding area as described in the 
applicant’s letter. Finally, the applicant also has plans to set up a valet parking service to two 
off-site parking lots (1054 Ellis Street & 368 Industrial Ave). Overall, Staff are recommending 
approval of this Development Permit. 

The application was considered by the Community Heritage Committee (CHC) at the September 
4th 2014 meeting. The CHC supported the application and provided the following anecdotal 
comments:  

The Community Heritage Committee supports the application and notes the loss of 
the three parking stalls [in front of the brew pub] to be a minor consolation 
considering new downtown parking options and application will improve the safety 
of the neighborhood pedestrians and creates a more vibrant environment. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Project Description 

Chico’s Eatery & Brew Co. is proposing to significantly improve the north block of Ellis Street in 
order to run a brew pub. The applicant will revitalize the heritage building by first exposing the 
exterior brick via the process of sandblasting then seal the brick for preservation. The applicant 
will remove the interior drywall, electric heaters hanging from the ceiling and newer timbers 
attached to the original solid wood beams. The proposed changes will leave a heritage canvas 
ready to be restored.  
 
Exterior definition will be provided by iron fencing, exposed concrete, light poles and concrete 
pavers to replace asphalt; all of which are inspired by adherence to Crime Prevention Though 
Environmental Design (CPTED). Adherence to CPTED will continue down the side of the building 
with the use of exterior sconces, trees for definition of space and motion lighting. Lastly, the 
windows will be restored to be similar in style to the neighboring restored brick.  The signage is 
inspired by Kelowna’s own Paramount Theater, Seattle’s Pike Place Market and classic hotel 
signage from the early 1900s. 
 
 
 

85



DP14-0183 – Page 4 

 
4.2 Site Context 

The subject property is located on Ellis Street and adjacent to Prospera Place. The adjacent 
commercial unit in the northern wing is to be occupied by “MotoVida” which is a full service and 
repair motorcycle shop. 

Subject Property Map: 1250 Ellis Street 

  

 

5.0 Current Development Policies  

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Objectives for Development within Urban Centres (OCP Chapter 6) 

 All development should be an appropriate response to its physical context, or 
anticipated future context where an area is designated for increased density or land 
use transition in the OCP.  

 All development should contribute to the creation of pedestrian-oriented streets and 
public spaces (connections, social interaction).  

 All development should contribute to a sense of community identity and sense of place 
(integration of development within larger community, belonging, community 
cohesiveness).  

 Urban Centre Policies 

Tree Planting. Attach priority to planting street trees within Urban Centre areas where 
there are currently few trees and where pedestrian activity is high or is planned to be 
high. 

Alternative Transportation. Ensure that pedestrians, bicyclists and transit users can move 
about pleasantly and conveniently and that they are not unduly impeded in their 
movements by provisions for enhanced automobile mobility. 

Legend: 

Portion of Property under consideration for Development Permit and 
Development Variance Permit. 

86



DP14-0183 – Page 5 

 
Mixed Uses. Work towards increasing the number of buildings with mixed uses by 
encouraging developers to incorporate retail uses on the lower storeys with office and/or 
residential above.  

 

Development Permit Guidelines to Encourage Revitalization within All Urban Centres 

Parking. Parking areas should, wherever possible and safe, be located either under 
buildings or at the rear or side of main buildings.  

Parking. Mutual access agreements providing for co-ordination and connection of parking 
lots should be encouraged. 

Relationship to the Street. Buildings containing uses attracting visits from the general 
public should be located as close to the front property line as practical and as permitted 
under prevailing zoning regulations. 

Relationship to the Street. People-oriented facilities (store entrances, café seating areas, 
displays, signage) should be focussed along public streets and in front of buildings. 

Relationship to the Street. Storefronts should incorporate large windows such that 
passers-by can see in and occupants can “look out”. 

Walls. End walls visible from a public street or residential lot should be finished to provide 
an attractive appearance. Blank or solid walls (without glazing) should not be longer than 
5m. Walls longer than 5m should incorporate wall detailing that will provide visual 
interest. 

Development Permit Guidelines for Form and Character of Commercial Development 

Access. Design should facilitate pedestrian and bicycle access. 

Amenities. Amenities such as benches, garbage receptacles etc. should be encouraged to 
provide a pedestrian-friendly environment. 

5.2 Restoration Guidelines for Designated Heritage Sites 

Where any heritage resource has been designated as a municipal, provincial, or national 
heritage site, the following conditions are encouraged: 

 Authenticity to the architectural style, original site configuration, landscaping and 
auxiliary structures are encouraged to be adhered to for all restorations. 

 Exact materials, or equals approved by the Community Heritage Committee, used 
in the original construction are encouraged to be used for all restorations. 

 Colour schemes are encouraged to be authentic to the period and architectural 
style of the designated building. 

6.0 Technical Comments  

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

 Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit 
applications. 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

 See attached. 

 

87



DP14-0183 – Page 6 

 
6.3 Fire Department 

 No concerns. 

6.4 RCMP 

 See LL14-0014 for liquor license comments. 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received: August 18th 2014  

Report prepared by: 

     
Adam Cseke, Planner  
 
 

Reviewed by:    Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager  
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Doug Gilchrist, Divisional Director - 
 Community Planning & Real Estate 

 

Attachments:  

Subject Property Map 
Public Consultation 
Development Engineering Memo 
DP14-0183 

88



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: 11/10/2014 

RIM No. 0940-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Services (MS) 

Application: DVP14-0219 Owner: 
Parkbridge Lifestyle 
Communities Inc. 

Address: 1511 Tower Ranch Drive  
Phase I 

Applicant: MMM Group Ltd. 

Subject: Development Variance Permit – Front Yard Setback 

Existing OCP Designation: 

MRL – Multiple Unit Residential (Low Density) 
S2RES – Single / Two Unit Residential 
S2RESH – Single / Two Unit Residential – Hillside 
PARK – Major Park and Open Space (public) 

Existing Zone: Comprehensive Development Zone 6 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP14-0219, for a 
variance for a portion of Lot 3, Plan KAP80993, Section 31, TWP 27, ODYD, located at 1511 Tower 
Ranch Drive, Kelowna, BC, as shown in  Schedule ‘A’ as ‘Phase I’ for the development;  
 
AND THAT Council considers the public process outlined in the Staff Report dated November 10, 
2014 to be appropriate consultation for the purpose of Section 879 of the Local Government Act; 

 
AND THAT variances to the following sections of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted:  
 
Section 13.5.6: RU5 – Bareland Strata Housing (Development Regulations)  
 
To vary the site front yard from 4.5 m permitted to 3.0 m proposed, for  

 proposed Lots 1 to 12 and  

 Lots 14 to 28, as per Schedule ‘A’ attached; and 
To vary the site front yard from 4.5 m permitted to 1.5 m proposed, for  

 proposed Lot 13, per Schedule ‘A’, attached 

2.0 Purpose  

To consider a request by the applicant to reduce the minimum front yard setback from 4.5 m 
permitted to 3.0 m proposed for 27 single unit bareland strata lots in the proposed Phase I 
development and to reduce the minimum front yard setback from 4.5 m permitted to 1.5 m 

89



DVP14-0219 – Page 2 

 
 

proposed for one Lot in the same phase, in order to facilitate the placement of pillars for a front 
porch.  

3.0 Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment  (SAE) Services  

SAE staff are supportive of the proposed variance to the Zoning Bylaw to accommodate the 
installation of front porch pillars for the proposed houses.  The variance is considered in the 
context of the Development Permit (DP14-0031) which identifies a No-Build / No-Disturb area 
along the back yards of the lots. In addition, the front porches will add architectural interest to 
the community.  

The variance is not expected to result in any negative impacts on adjoining properties.  

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

In 2012, Tower Ranch Lots 3, 4 and 6 were purchased by Parksbridge Lifestyle Communities Inc. 
(Parksbridge). Parksbridge develop communities based on a life lease concept, whereby the 
owner developer maintains ownership and management through the life of the development. The 
future land use was planned by a previous developer, and Parksbridge has an interest in 
amending the configuration of the future land uses to better suit their concept and target 
market. 

The proposed Development Variance Permit has been designed in accordance with their Phase I 
Development Plan, as well as geotechnical and environmental assessments, under DP14-0031.  

4.2 Project Description 

The applicant is seeking variances to the minimum front yard required in order to accommodate 
the installation of the pillars of the front porches. Staff notes that the required 6.0 m from the 
garage to the back of curb will be maintained or exceeded in all cases, such that an additional 
car may be accommodated in this location if required for visitors etc. Specifically, the request is 
to vary: 

 Lots 1 to Lot 12, and Lots 14 to 28 – minimum front yard from 4.5 m 
permitted to 3.0 m; and 

 Lot 13 – minimum front yard from 4.5 permitted to 1.5 m. 
 

90



DVP14-0219 – Page 3 

 
 

 

 

4.3 Site Context 

The site is located on the upper McCurdy Bench in the Rutland OCP Sector. The Tower Ranch Golf 
Course lies to the west and east of Lot 3. The Clubhouse property is a strata lot to which 
Parksbridge is a part of, lies to the north. Tower Ranch Mountain Park lies to the south of Lot 3. 
Residential properties are further to the west and line Tower Ranch Boulevard and Split Rail, and 
more residences are being developed to the north of Tower Ranch Boulevard. 

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North 
CD6 – Comprehensive Residential Golf Course / 
CD6 LP - Comprehensive Residential Golf Course  
(Liquor Primary) 

Golf Course / Clubhouse 

East CD6 – Comprehensive Residential Golf Course Golf Course 

South A1 – Agriculture 1 / P3 – Park & Open Space 
Rural Residential / Park / Hydro 
Transfer Station 

West CD6 – Comprehensive Residential Golf Course Golf Course 

 
  

Hillside Area 
 

Figure 1 – Detail of Site Plan 
 
 

Garages will be a minimum of 6 m 
from the back of curb. 

 

 
Columns will be up to 3 m from 
Property line for 27 lots; and 
Up to 1.5 m from the property line 
for one lot 
 

Property Line 
 

91



DVP14-0219 – Page 4 

 
 

Map 1. Tower Ranch Subject Area 

 
  

Lot 3  

Lot 4 

Golf 

Course 

Lot 6 

Golf 

Course 

Golf 

Course 

Golf 

Course 

Tower Ranch 

Mountain Park 

92



DVP14-0219 – Page 5 

 
 

4.4 Zoning Analysis 

A comparison of required and proposed zoning regulations is shown in the table below. 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA 
ZONE REQUIREMENTS 

RU5 
PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 
Lot Area 325m2 (bareland strata lot) 325m2 (bareland strata lot) 

Lot Width  12.0 m (bareland strata lot)  12.0 m (bareland strata lot) 

Lot Depth 25.0 m (bareland strata lot) 25.0 m (bareland strata lot) 

Development Regulations 
Height 9.5 m or 2½ storeys 9.5 m or 2½ storeys 

Front Yard 4.5 m 
3.0 m (27 lots)  
1.5 m (1 lot)  

Side Yard 3.0 m 3.0 m 

Rear Yard 6.0 m 6.0 m 

Other Regulations 

Minimum Parking Requirements 
2 per dwelling unit & 1 per 7 

dwelling units designated 
visitor parking 

2 per dwelling unit & 1 per 7 
dwelling units designated visitor 

parking 

Bicycle Parking N/A N/A 

Private Open Space 
Required yards and 10% of site 

shall be open space 
Required yards and 10% of site 

shall be open space 

 Indicates a requested variance 

5.0 Current Development Policies  

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Development Process 

Steep Slopes.1 Prohibit development on steep slopes (+30% or greater for a minimum distance of 
10 metres) except where provided for in ASPs adopted or subdivisions approved prior to adoption 
of OCP Bylaw 10500. 
 
Cluster Housing.2  Require new residential development to be in the form of cluster housing on / 
or near environmentally sensitive areas and areas of steeper slopes to lessen site disturbance and 
environmental impact on those areas identified on the Future Land Use Map 4.1 as single-two 
unit residential hillside. Steeply sloped areas should be retained as natural open space, public 
or private. The intent of the clustering would be to preserve features identified through the 
Development Permit process that otherwise might be developed and to maximize open space in 
order to: 

a. Protect environmentally sensitive areas of a development site and preserve them on a 
permanent basis utilizing the most appropriate tools available; 

b. Facilitate creative and flexible site design that is sensitive to the land’s natural features 
and adaptive to the natural topography; 

c. Decrease or minimize non-point source (i.e. asphalt roofs, driveways and parking) 
pollution impacts by reducing the amount of impervious surfaces in site development; 

d. Promote overall cost savings on infrastructure installation and maintenance; and 
                                                      
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.2.3 (Development Process Chapter). 
2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.2.3 (Development Process Chapter). 

93



DVP14-0219 – Page 6 

 
 

e. Provide opportunities for social interaction, walking and hiking in open space areas. 
 

Ground-Oriented Housing.3  Encourage all multiple-unit residential buildings in neighbourhoods 
with schools and parks to contain ground-oriented units with 2 or more bedrooms so as to provide 
a family housing choice within the multi-unit rental or ownership markets.  
 
Pedestrian Connectivity.4   Improve the permeability of strata developments by ensuring that 
active transportation connections are facilitated where possible. 
 
Design for People and Nature.5 Structure new neighbourhoods around parks, pedestrian and bike 
routes, open spaces, and environmental areas, rather than around roadways and cars. 

6.0 Technical Comments  

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

No Comment. 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

The proposed variance does not compromise any Municipal Infrastructure Services, and does not 
trigger any services upgrades.  

6.3 Policy and Planning 

No concerns. 

6.4 Policy Fire Department 

The Fire Department has no concerns. 

6.5 Shaw Cable 

Shaw Cable approves proposed Development Variance Permit Application No. DVP14-0219 for 
1511 Tower Ranch Drive. 

6.6 Telus 

TELUS will provide underground facilities to this development. Developer will be required to 
supply and install conduit as per TELUS policy. 

 
  

                                                      
3 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.2.3 (Development Process Chapter). 
4 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.2.3 (Development Process Chapter). 
5 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.2.3 (Development Process Chapter). 

94



DVP14-0219 – Page 7 

 
 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received: October 20, 2014  
 

Report prepared by: 

     
Melanie Steppuhn, Land Use Planner  
 
 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Todd Cashin, Manager, Land Use Management 
 

Attachments:  

Site Plan 
Conceptual Elevations 
Public Notification Letter (Oct.28, 2014) 
Public Notification Site Plan and Layout Plan 
Public Notification Distribution Area 

95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: November 17, 2014 

RIM No. 0940-93 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (TY) 

Application: TUP14-0005 Owner: 0838232 BC Ltd. 

Address: 2092 Enterprise Way Applicant: 
Peter Downward, Argus 
Properties Ltd.  

Subject: Temporary Use Permit  

Existing OCP Designation: Industrial (IND) 

Existing Zone: I3 – Heavy Industrial 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorize Temporary Use Permit No. TUP14-0005 to allow the use of a portion of 
the subject property for Thrift Store for Lot 3, District Lots 127 &531, ODYD, Plan KAP54290, 
located at 2092 Enterprise Way, Kelowna, BC, for a three (3) year period commencing from 
Council approval subject to the following; 
 

a) The dimensions and siting of the temporary use space to be constructed on the land be in 
general accordance with Schedule “A”; 
 

b) The exterior design and finish of the temporary use space to be constructed on the land 
be in general accordance with Schedule “B”; 

 
AND THAT issuance of the Temporary Use Permit be considered subsequent to the requirements 
of the Development Engineering Branch being completed to their satisfaction.   

2.0 Purpose  

To seek a Temporary Use Permit to allow 2,111m2 of the west portion of the existing building on 
the subject property to be used as a thrift store.for the sale of used or discontinued construction 
material and home decor for the operation of “ReStore” through the organization Habitat for 
Humanity.  

3.0 Urban Planning Department 

Staff recommends that Council supports this Temporary Use Permit Application.  The TUP will 
allow the sale of used or discontinued construction material and home décor for the operation of 
“ReStore” through the organization Habitat For Humanity. Reuse programs like the proposed 
ReStore currently have 84 locations throughout Canada including the District of West Kelowna. 

107



TUP14-0005 – Page 2 

 
 

This proposed location accepts donations of used or discontinued construction material and home 
decor by contractors or commercial retailers that may otherwise end up in the landfill. This is an 
appropriate location for a reuse program as the storage and refurbishing of construction 
materials requires an industrial zone while the sale of these products requires a commercial 
zone. The subject property borders both of these land uses with industrial on all immediate 
property lines, commercial businesses to the south separated by Enterprise Way. The proposed 
Temporary Use is occurring on lands that are designated for Future Industrial use. 

Section 8 – Parking and Loading of the Zoning Bylaw 8000 indicates that “Retail Store, 
Convenience Retail Store, General Flea Markets, and Second-hand Stores with GFA greater than 
1,000m2 require 3.0 parking spaces per 100m2 GFA. The required parking for this proposed use is 
a total of 63 stalls. The other current uses of the existing building require 0.5 parking spaces per 
100m2 GFA. “Warehousing and Storage” requires a total of 57 stalls. Currently the proposed site 
plan shows a total of 101 parking stalls. This leaves the parking requirements for the proposed 
use deficient by 19 parking stalls. Loading space for the temporary use is provided for on the 
north end of the subject property.  

The proposed temporary use is confined to the western portion of the existing building. The 
property immediately to the west of the subject property will be affected the most by this 
proposed temporary use as parking and storage of materials will be located in the space between 
the subject building and the west property line. The neighbouring property, 2076 Enterprise Way 
currently operates as an industrial operation.  

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

The existing single building on the subject property currently accommodates two companies. 
Enviromech Industries assembles fuel storage and delivery systems. Rayburn’s Marine World 
utilizes the space for boat storage. Previously, Crown Packaging operated in the building. 

The subject property is currently zoned I3 – Heavy Industrial. The existing TUP portion of the 
building has been vacant since December, 2011. 0838232 BC Ltd is seeking to sublease the west 
portion of the building to Habitat for Humanity for the purpose of operating Restore. Due to the 
complexities of the different uses carried out on a daily basis there is not an existing zone that 
this proposed use complies with. The Temporary Use Permit will give 0838232 BC three years for 
temporary use of the property with an additional 3 year option should it be necessary (and 
supported by Council). Staff will be encouraging the applicant to pursue an I2 zone rather than a 
Temporary Use Permit extension.  

4.2 Project Description 

The existing building footprint is approximately 13,490m2, with the proposed portion utilizing 
2,111m2 in the west side end the building. The ReStore operation will service the construction 
and commercial sales industry in Kelowna allowing the cost free drop off of reusable materials.  
The operation will also service the smaller construction companies as well as home owners with 
the sale of these items at wholesale cost.   

4.3 Site Context 

The subject property is located on the north side of Enterprise Way, between Hardy Street and 
Dilworth Drive. The property is currently zoned I3, identified in Kelowna’s Official Community 
Plan as Industrial, and is within the Permanent Growth Boundary. 

108



TUP14-0005 – Page 3 

 
 

Subject Property Map:   2092 Enterprise Way 

 
 
Adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North I1 – Business Industrial 
Custom Indoor Manufacturing & 
Technical Service Businesses 

East 
C7 – Central Business Commercial 
I2 – General Industrial 

Automotive Parts Sales 
Window Manufacturing 

South 

C4 – Urban Centre Commercial 
C4 – Urban Centre Commercial 
C4LP - Urban Centre Commercial (Liquor 
Primary) 

Commercial Business 
Restaurant 
Hotel 

West I2 – General Industrial 
Power Line Contracting & Dry Coating 
Paint Business 

 

5.0 Current Development Policies 

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Chapter 4 – Future Land Use - Temporary Use Permits (TUP) 

The temporary use designation is intended to apply to operations that are temporary in nature 
and the designation does not in itself permit specific uses on the designated sites. Within these 
areas, Council may, by resolution, issue a Temporary Use Permit and specify the conditions under 
which the temporary use be carried on. Upon the expiration of a Temporary Use Permit, the 
permitted uses revert to those outlined in the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw 8000.  
 
The OCP allows Temporary Use Permits within “the Permanent Growth Boundary (PGB) on all 
lands designated in OCP2030 Commercial, Education /Institutional, Industrial, Mixed Use or 
Public Service / Utility.” The OCP defines Industrial as “uses that provide services and support to 

Proposed location of 
Temporary Use Permit 

109



TUP14-0005 – Page 4 

 
 

industrial and business customers. This designation may also include CD Comprehensive 
Development zoning that provides for industrial uses.” The retail sales to the general public that 
this proposed use accommodates does blend in with the adjacent land uses to the south. The 
subject property fronts Enterprise Way, south of the subject property along Enterprise Way are 
future land uses of Mixed Use (Residential/Commercial) as well as Commercial.  
 
Chapter 7 - Infrastructure – Solid Waste Policies 

Divert solid waste from landfills1Ensure Regional Strategies for waste management are followed.  
 
Resource Recovery2 Provide opportunities for resource recovery from reuse and utilization of 
waste transported for disposal in order to reduce the carbon footprint associated with waste.   

6.0 Technical Comments  

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

This will affect the exiting of the existing tenant and additional requirement for exiting 
will be required. A full code analysis will be required at time of building permit 
application and this may affect the form and character of the building if additional door 
are required. 

6.2 Development Engineering Branch 

Refer to attached memorandum, dated November 12, 2014. 

6.3 Fire Department 

There are going to be exiting issues for the existing business that uses part of this 
building. We will need to make sure the travel distances are met.  

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received: September 16, 2014 
Date of Public Consultation:   September 29, 2014 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

                                                      
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 7.24.1 (Infrastructure Chapter). 
2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 7.25.1 (Infrastructure Chapter). 

110



TUP14-0005 – Page 5 

 
 

Report prepared by: 

 

     
Tracey Yuzik 

Reviewed by:  Lindsey Ganczar, Urban Planning Supervisor 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 

 

Attachments: 

Subject Property Map 
Rationale Letter 
Schedule “A” -Site Plan 
Schedule “B” - Elevations 
Site Photos 
Development Engineering Memo 
Neighbour Consultation Documentation 
DRAFT Temporary Use Permit No. TUP14-0005 

111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: November 17, 2014 

RIM No. 0940-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Community Planning & Real Estate (PMc) 

Application: DVP14-0233 Owner(s): Rodney & Jody Hazard 

Address: 204 Poplar Point Drive Applicant: Rodney Hazard 

Subject: Development Variance Permit  

Existing OCP Designation: Single/Two Unit Residential (S2RES) 

Existing Zone: RU1 – Large Lot Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

That Council authorize the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP14-0233 for Lot 1,  
District Lot 219, ODYD, Plan 4561, located on 204 Poplar Point Dr., Kelowna, BC; 
 
AND THAT the variances to the following sections Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 

Section 6.11.1 - Okanagan Lake Sight Lines - To vary the required Okanagan Lake 120° 
Panoramic Sight Line to 86° proposed, resulting from the north sight line being reduced 
from 60° required, to 26° proposed as shown on Schedule “A”.  

2.0 Purpose 

To vary the Okanagan Lake Sight Lines from 60º required to 26º proposed. 

3.0 Urban Planning Department  

Urban Planning Department staff do not have concerns with the requested variance.  The 
property was the subject of a Development Variance Permit application (DVP09-0048) that was 
considered by Council on September 22, 2009 and subsequently issued.  However, owing to 
economic conditions at the time, construction was not started, and the issued Development 
Variance Permit lapsed.  This current application is the same as the previously approved 
variance.  The applicant has also provided copy of the sales agreement for the dwelling located 
at 208 Poplar Point Drive, which acknowledged that the prospective purchaser agreed to support 
a variance to the Okanagan Lake Sight Lines for the subject property. 

At the time of the previous application, the applicant registered a no-build covenant adjacent to 
Okanagan Lake to protect slope and reduce the potential impact on the foreshore of Okanagan 
Lake and the aquatic species. 

133



DVP14-0233 – Page 2 

 
 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background/Description 

 
The subject property was under application for a Development Variance Permit (DVP09-0048) in 
2009 to vary the Okanagan Lake Sight Lines.  That application was considered by Council in 
October 2009, and was subsequently issued.  However, owning to delays in commencing 
construction, that Development Variance Permit has lapsed as an issued permit is only good for a 
maximum of 2 years if no construction starts. 
 
The applicant now wishes to commence construction on the subject property, and will need to 
have the associated variance to the Okanagan Lake Sight Lines reconsidered by Council in order 
to get the Development Variance Permit reinstated. 
 
Zoning Bylaw No. 8000, Section 6.11.1 - Okanagan Lake Sight Lines notes that all buildings and 
structures, greater than 1.2m above natural grade, on lots along Okanagan Lake foreshore shall 
be sited to not obstruct views of the lake from the established abutting development.  New 
development shall be sited to permit the adjacent occupants a 120° panoramic view from the 
corner of the house, parallel with the adjacent property lines, as shown in Diagram 6.2: 
Okanagan Lake 120° Panoramic Sight Line (see below). 
 
The applicant has proposed to reduce the north site line from 60° (required), to 26° (proposed).  
As a result, the panoramic sight line would be reduced from 120° (required), to 86° (proposed). 
 

 

 

While the applicant has not proposed a specific development or building envelope, a variance has 
been requested for the sight line requirements, which currently restrict the building envelope to 
the front (east) approximate 1/3 of the parcel.  As no dwelling is being proposed at this time, the 
variance will only pertain to the Okanagan Lake 120° Panoramic Sight Line, but will provide 

134



DVP14-0233 – Page 3 

 
 

greater certainty to the building envelope in anticipation of a building design.  As this site is 
within both the Natural Environment and Hazardous Condition Development Permit Areas, the 
proponent will be required to obtain a Natural Environment Development Permit including a 
geotechnical assessment prior to commencing construction on this parcel.  As part of the 2009 
application, the applicant has registered a no-build covenant on the lot protect the sensitive 
slopes adjacent to Okanagan Lake. 
  

4.2 Site Context 

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North W1 – Recreational Water Use Okanagan Lake 

East P3 – Parks & Open Space Road End access to lake 

South P3 – Parks & Open Space Knox Mountain Park 

West RU1 – Large Lot Housing Single Unit dwelling 

 

Subject Property Map:      204 Poplar Point Drive 

 

4.3 Zoning Analysis Table 

The table below depicts this application’s compliance with the requirements of the RU1 zone.  

Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 

CRITERIA PROPOSAL RU1 ZONE REQUIREMENTS  

Development Regulations 

Site Coverage (buildings) <40% 40% 

Site Coverage (buildings, <50% 50% 

Knox Mountain Park 

SUBJECT PROPERTY 

Restrictive Covenant Area 

135



DVP14-0233 – Page 4 

 
 

driveways, and parking) 

Height <9.5 m 9.5 m, 2 ½ storeys 

Front yard >6.0 m 6.0 m 

Rear yard >7.5 m 7.5 m 

Side yard >2.0 m 2.0 m 

Other Regulations 

Okanagan Lake 120° 
Panoramic Sight Line (60° per 

abutting development) 
26°  60° 

 Indicates that a variance is requested 

 

5.0 Technical Comments 

5.1 Development Engineering Department 

Application to encroach within the 60 degree sight line does not compromise any 
 municipal services. 

5.2 Fire Department 

No Concerns 

6.0 Application Chronology 

Date of Application Received: November 7, 2014  
 

Report prepared by: 

     
Paul McVey, Urban Planner  
 
 

Reviewed by:    Lindsey Ganczar, Urban Planning Supervisor 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 

 

Attachments: 

Subject property map 
Site Plan (Schedule “A”) 
Context/Site Photos 
Plan of restrictive covenant  
Draft Development Variance Permit 

136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: November 18, 2014 

RIM No. 0940-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (LB) 

Application: DVP14-0179 Owner: 
Lifestyles Strata 
Management 

Address: 1886 Parkview Crescent Applicant: Jenine Trudeau 

Subject: Development Variance Permit Application  

Existing OCP Designation: MRL – Multiple Unit Residential (Low Density) 

Existing Zone: RM3 – Low Density Multiple Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP14-0179, for the 
Common Property of Strata Plan KAS885, located on 1886 Parkview Crescent, Kelowna, BC; 

AND THAT a variance to the following section of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 

 Section 7.5.11: Fencing and Retaining Walls 

To vary the maximum combined height of a fence on top of a retaining wall from 2.0 m 
permitted to 3.2 m proposed. 

2.0 Purpose 

To consider a Development Variance Permit application to vary the maximum combined height of 
a fence on top of a retaining wall from 2.0 permitted to 3.2 m proposed. 

3.0 Urban Planning 

Urban Planning staff support the requested variance to vary the maximum height of a fence and 
retaining wall to 3.2 m. The chain link fence will be 2.0 m in height on top of a concrete block 
retaining wall that will be 1.2 m in height. The structures will be along the north property line 
where a wood fence in need of replacement is currently located. The retaining wall is required 
because the subject property is higher in elevation than the abutting property to the north 
(Peacock Mobile Home Park).  

The variance is being requested to facilitate adequate screening with a 2.0 m high fence. There 
is a large commercial area north of the subject property as well as a mobile home park to the 
immediate north. A variance would not be required if the fence was at least 1.2 m away from the 

151



DVP14-0179 – Page 2 

 
 

property line; however, further encroachment into the already limited rear yard space is not 
desirable. 

There will be backfill along the retaining wall on the subject property to level the rear yard. The 
existing landscaping along the fence, which consists of some small shrubs and grasses, will be 
replaced with grass. 

In accordance with Council Policy 367 – Public Notification & Consultation for Development 
Applications, the applicant has undertaken efforts to contact the neighbouring properties. No 
concerns were expressed to the applicant. To date, staff has not been contacted with any 
questions or concerns about the application. Peacock Mobile Home Park, located immediately 
north of the subject, provided written confirmation that they have no objections to the new 
fence and retaining wall being built to approximately the same height as the existing fence. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Site Context 

The subject property is located on the north side of Parkview Crescent between Leckie Road and 
Springfield Road. The property is designated MRL – Multiple Unit Residential (Low Density) in the 
Official Community Plan. The area surrounding the property is primarily residential with a mobile 
home park to the north, single family dwellings to the east, and other townhouse complexes to 
the south and west. Large-scale commercial uses are located farther north of the subject 
property. 

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North RM7 – Mobile Home Park Peacock Mobile Home Park 

East RU1 – Large Lot Housing Single family dwellings 

South RM3 – Low Density Multiple Housing 
Columbus Place (townhouse complex) 
Pennington Court (townhouse complex) 

West RM3 – Low Density Multiple Housing Orchard Place (townhouse complex) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

152



DVP14-0179 – Page 3 

 
 

Subject Property Map: 1886 Parkview Crescent 

 

4.2 Zoning Analysis Table 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RM3 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 
Lot Area 900 m2 12,590 m2 

Lot Width 30.0 m 84.01 m 

Lot Depth 30.0 m 148.48 m 

Fencing and Retaining Wall Regulations 
Combined Height 2.0 m 3.2 m  

 Indicates a requested variance to vary the maximum combined height of a fence on top of a retaining wall at or within 1.2 m of 

the property line from 2.0 m permitted to 3.2 m proposed. 

5.0 Technical Comments 

5.1 Building & Permitting Department 

 No comments. 

5.2 Development Engineering Department 

 See attached memorandum, dated September 25, 2014. 

5.3 FortisBC – Gas 

 Please be aware that we have a 42 PE main running along the property line. 

 

153



DVP14-0179 – Page 4 

 
 

6.0 Application Chronology 

Date of Application Received:  September 15, 2014  
Date Public Consultation Completed: September 13, 2014  

Report prepared by: 

     
Laura Bentley, Planner 
 
 

Reviewed by:    Lindsey Ganczar, Urban Planning Supervisor 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
 

Attachments: 

Subject Property Map 
Site Plan 
Existing Site Photos 
Development Engineering Memorandum 
Draft Development Variance Permit No. DVP14-0179 

154



155



156



157



158



159



160



CITY OF KELOWNA 
 
APPROVED ISSUANCE OF A: 
 

 Development Variance Permit No.:        DVP14-0179 
    

 
EXISTING ZONING DESIGNATION: 
 
DEVLOPMENT VARIANCE PERMIT: 
 

 
RM3 – Low Density Multiple Housing 
 
To vary the maximum combined height for a fence on top of a 
retaining wall from 2.0 m permitted to 3.2 m proposed. 
 

 
 
ISSUED TO:                         Jenine Trudeau 
 
LOCATION OF SUBJECT SITE: 1886 Parkview Crescent 
 
 
 LOT SECTION D.L. TOWNSHIP DISTRICT PLAN 
 
LEGAL 
DESCRIPTION: 

Common 
Property- - - - - Strata Plan 

KAS883 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SCOPE OF APPROVAL 
 
This Permit applies to and only to those lands within the Municipality as described above, and any and all buildings, 
structures and other development thereon. 
 
This Permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the Bylaws of the Municipality applicable thereto, except as 
specifically varied or supplemented by this Permit, noted in the Terms and Conditions below. 
 
Applicants for Development and Development Variance Permit should be aware that the issuance of a Permit limits 
the applicant to be in strict compliance with regulations of the Zoning Bylaw or Subdivision Control Bylaw unless 
specific Variances have been authorized by the Permit.  No implied Variances from bylaw provisions shall be granted 
by virtue of drawing notations which are inconsistent with bylaw provisions and which may not have been identified 
as required Variances by the applicant or City staff. 
 

 
1. TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 

 
THAT a variance to the following section of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 

 
Section 7.5.11: Fencing and Retaining Walls 
To vary the maximum combined height of a fence on top of a retaining wall from 2.0 m permitted to 
3.2 m proposed. 

 
2. PERFORMANCE SECURITY:  

 
As a condition of the issuance of this Permit, Council is holding the security set out below to ensure that 
development is carried out in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Permit.  Should any interest be 
earned upon the security, it shall accrue to the Permittee and be paid to the Permittee if the security is returned.  
The condition of the posting of the security is that should the Permittee fail to carry out the development hereby 
authorized, according to the terms and conditions of this Permit within the time provided, the Municipality may use 
the security to carry out the work by its servants, agents or contractors, and any surplus shall be paid over to the 
Permittee, or should the Permittee carry out the development Permitted by this Permit within the time set out 
above, the security shall be returned to the Permittee.  There is filed accordingly: 

 
 

161



162



163



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: November 7th, 2014 

RIM No. 0940-40 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (AC) 

Application: DP14-0192 & DVP14-0241 Owner: Raisanen Construction Ltd. 

Address: 1982 Kane Rd Applicant: 
Garry Fawley (PC Urban 
Properties Corp.) 

Title: Development Permit & Development Variance Permit 

Existing OCP Designation: COMM (Commercial) 

Existing Zone: C-3 (Community Commercial) 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Permit No. DP14-0192 for Lot 1, Section 
33, Township 26, ODYD, Plan 4043, located on 1982 Kane Road, Kelowna, BC subject to the 
following: 

1. The dimensions and siting of the building to be constructed on the land be in general 
accordance with Schedule “A”; 

2. The exterior design and finish of the building to be constructed on the land be in general 
accordance with Schedule “B”; 

3. Landscaping to be provided on the land be in general accordance with Schedule “C”; 

4. Prior to issuance of the Building Permit, the requirements of the Development Engineering 
Branch must be satisfied; 

5. The applicant be required to post with the City, a Landscape Performance Security 
deposit in the form of a “Letter of Credit” in the amount of 125% of the estimated value 
of the landscaping, as determined by a professional landscaper;  

AND FURTHER THAT the applicant be required to complete the above-noted conditions within 180 
days of Council’s approval of the Development Permit Application in order for the permit to be 
issued. 

THAT Council authorize the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP14-0241, Lot 1, 
Section 33, Township 26, ODYD, Plan 4043, located on 1982 Kane Road, Kelowna, BC. 
 
 

 

164



DP14-0192 & DVP14-0241 – Page 2 

 
 

AND THAT the variance to the following section Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 

Section 14.3.5 (d) – Development Regulations 

To vary the front yard setback from 3.0 m to 1.5 m; and  

Section 8.1 – Parking and Loading (Table 8.1 – Parking Schedule) 

To vary the parking requirements as calculated within Table 8.1 – Parking Schedule from 63 
parking stalls to 61 parking stalls.  

2.0 Purpose 

To consider a Development Permit and Development Variance Permit application for the form 
and character of a commercial development on the subject property.  

3.0 Urban Planning  

Staff supports the requested variances to the Zoning Bylaw and recommend issuance of the 
Development Permit.  

This Development Permit reviewed the second phase of the Brandt’s Creek development. Phase 2 
was always anticipated to be an extension of Phase 1 and the intent is that they blend seamlessly 
together. Phase 2 employs the same bright exteriors and peak roof elements present in phase 1 
as well as continuing the same principals employed in landscape design. 

Building 5 includes a bank / financial service establishment which has an attached drive through. 
The C-3 zone does not permit “Drive-In Food Services” therefore this space cannot be converted 
in the future to a fast food restaurant without a rezoning or a text amendment. 

The proposed building setback variance to Kane Road is reasonable as it is the same setback 
variance approved by Council in Phase 1 and helps to create an urban edge to the Kane 
frontages, while providing some additional flexibility for site planning and vehicle parking 
allocation. The applicant is proposing a two vehicle reduction in their off-street parking 
requirement for phase 2 which is approximately a 3% reduction. In Phase 1, Council approved a 
parking variance from 184 stalls to 169 stalls, which was approximately a 8% reduction. To date, 
Staff have received no complaints and the applicant states that the level of parking currently 
provided exceeds demand. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Project Description 

This Development Permit is for the second phase of the Brandt’s Creek development at the 
intersection of Kane Road and Drysdale Boulevard. The second phase will be located to the east 
of the first phase and will complete the Brandt’s Creek development. The phases together will 
comprise of 62,000 square feet of commercial development anchored by Coopers Foods and 
Shoppers Drug Mart. 

Gable roof elements and parapet heights add variety and scale to the building massing.  Hardi-
plank panels (the principal finishing treatment) are used in a variety of colors and widths 
throughout the development.  Generous fabric awnings and timber elements further animate the 
elevations and create a consistent approach between buildings.   

 

 

165



DP14-0192 & DVP14-0241 – Page 3 

 
 

4.2 Site Context 

The subject property is located at the corner of Valley Road and Kane Road. The property has a 
Future Land Use designation of COMM - Commercial in the Official Community Plan and is within 
the Permanent Growth Boundary.  

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North RM5 – Medium Density Multiple Housing Vacant 

East A1 – Agriculture Agriculture 

South 
A1 – Agriculture 
RM3 – Low Density Multiple Housing 

Agriculture 
Multiple family dwellings 

West C3 – Community Commercial Commercial 

 

Subject Property Map: 1982 Kane Road 

 

 

4.3 Zoning Analysis Table 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA C3 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 
Lot Area 800 m2 5,410 m2 

Lot Width 20.0 m 34.2 m 

Lot Depth 30.0 m 104.2 m 

Development Regulations 
Site Coverage (buildings) 50% 28.89% 

FAR 1.0 0.29 

166



DP14-0192 & DVP14-0241 – Page 4 

 
 

Height 15 m (4 storeys) 1 storey 

Front Yard (Kane Road) 3.0 m 1.5 m  

Side Yard (east) 2.0 m 0.0 m 

Side Yard (west) 0.0 m 0.0 m 

Rear Yard 6.0 m 9.0 m  

Other Regulations 
Loading Spaces 1 1 

Parking Stalls 63 60  

Bicycle Spaces 12 spaces 12 spaces 

 Indicates a requested variance to reduce the minimum rear yard from 3.0 m required to 1.5 m proposed. 

 Indicates a requested variance to change the number of parking stalls from 63 required to 60 proposed. 

5.0 Current Development Policies 

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Development Process 

Compact Urban Form.1 Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing 
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done by 
increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 metre 
walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) through 
development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 5.3) in particular 
and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use Map 4.1. 

Sensitive Infill.2 Encourage new development or redevelopment in existing residential areas to 
be sensitive to or reflect the character of the neighbourhood with respect to building design, 
height and siting. 

Urban Design Guidelines  
 
Exterior Elevations and Materials.3 Continue higher quality materials used on the principal 
façade around any building corner or edge which is visible to the public; 
 

Human Scale.4 Distinguish key building elements through the use of setbacks, projections, 
textures, materials, and detailing: 

 Base: Within the first few storeys, a base should be clearly defined and positively 
contribute to the quality of the pedestrian environment; 

 Middle: The body of the building above the base should contribute to, but not dominate, 
the physical and visual quality of the overall streetscape; 

 Top: The roof should be distinguished from the rest of the building and designed to 
contribute to the visual quality of the skyline; 

6.0 Technical Comments  

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

 Development Cost Charges (DCCs) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any Building 
Permits. 

                                                
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.2.3 (Development Process Chapter). 
2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.22.6 (Development Process Chapter). 
3
 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 6.4 (Chapter 14 Urban Design Development Permit Areas) 

4
 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.3 (Chapter 14 Urban Design Development Permit Areas) 

167



DP14-0192 & DVP14-0241 – Page 5 

 
 

 A Building Code analysis is required for the structure at time of building permit 
applications. 

 A Geotechnical report is required to address the sub soil conditions and site drainage at 
time of building permit application. 

 Fire resistance ratings are required for storage, janitor and/or garbage enclosure room(s). 
The drawings submitted for building permit is to clearly identify how this rating will be 
achieved and where these area(s) are located. 

 Washroom requirements for base building are to be addressed in the building permit 
application. 

 Size and location of all signage to be clearly defined as part of the development permit. 
This should include the signage required for the building addressing to be defined on the 
drawings per the bylaws on the permit application drawings. 

 Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit 
applications. 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

 See attached memorandum dated October 22nd, 2014. 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received: September 1st, 2014 
Date of Public Consultation:  November 18th, 2014  

Report prepared by: 

     
Adam Cseke, Planner 
 

Reviewed by:    Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager  
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Doug Gilchrist, Divisional Director - 
 Community Planning & Real Estate 

 

Attachments:  

Subject Property Map 
Development Engineering Memorandum 
Draft Development Permit / Development Variance Permit 

 Schedule ‘A’ 
o Site Plan  
o Floor Plan 

 Schedule ‘B’ 
o Elevations 

 Schedule ‘C’ 
o Landscape Plan 

168



169



 

CITY OF KELOWNA 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 
Date: October 22, 2014 
File No.: DP14-0192  
 
To: Land Use Management (AC) 
 
From: Development Engineering Manager  
 
Subject: 1892 Kane Rd, Drysdale Blvd.        Lot 1 Sec 33 TP 26 ODYD Plan 4043 
 
 
The Development Engineering Branch comments and requirements regarding this application are 
as follows: 
 
The Development Engineering Technologist for this project is John Filipenko. AScT 
 
 
1. General. 
 

Development Engineering servicing and frontage improvement requirements were 
addressed under File Z13-0006. The requirements must be satisfied prior to issuance of 
the Development Permit. 

 
 
2. Domestic Water and Fire Protection 
 

(a) The property is located within the Glenmore Ellison Improvement District 
service area.  

 
(b) Ensure an adequately sized domestic water and fire protection system is 

in place.  The developer is required to make satisfactory arrangements 
with the GEID for these items. All charges for service connection and 
upgrading costs are to be paid directly to the GEID. 

 
(c) Landscaped boulevards, complete with underground irrigation systems, 

must be integrated with the on-site irrigation system.  
 

 
 

3. Storm Drainage 
 

(a) The developer must engage a consulting civil engineer to provide a storm 
water management plan for this development which meets the 
requirements of the City Storm Water Management Policy and Design 
Manual. The storm water management plan must also include provision 
of lot grading plan, and recommendations for onsite drainage containment 
and disposal systems.  

 

170



DP14-0192 1892 Kane Rd  Drysdale Blvd                                                       Page 2 of 2 

  

(b) Provide a Storm Management and Lot-Grading Plan. 
 
 
4. Geotechnical Report 
 

a) Provide a geotechnical report (3 copies), prepared by a Professional 
Engineer competent in the field of hydro-geotechnical engineering to 
address the items below: NOTE: The City is relying on the 
Geotechnical Engineer’s report to prevent any damage to property 
and/or injury to persons from occurring as a result of problems with 
soil slippage or soil instability related to this proposed development.  
 

 
(i) Area ground water characteristics, including any springs and 

overland surface drainage courses traversing the property.  
Identify any monitoring required. 

 
(ii) Site suitability for development. Site soil characteristics (i.e. fill 

areas, sulphate content, unsuitable soils such as organic material, 
etc.). 

 
(iii) Any special requirements for construction of roads, utilities and building 

structures. 
 

(iv) Recommendations for items that should be included in a 
Restrictive Covenant. 

 
(v) Any items required in other sections of this document. 

 
(vi) Recommendations for erosion and sedimentation controls for 

water and wind. 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_________________________ 
Steve Muenz, P. Eng. 
Development Engineering Manager 
JF/jf 
 

171



 

 

CITY OF KELOWNA 
 
APPROVED ISSUANCE OF A: 
 

 
 

Development Permit No.:   DP14-0192  

 
 

Development Variance Permit No.:   DVP14-0241  

 
EXISTING ZONING DESIGNATION: 
 
WITHIN DEVELOPMENT PERMIT AREA: 
 

  
C-3 Community Commercial 
 
Comprehensive Development Permit Area 

 

 
ISSUED TO:                         Raisanen Construction Ltd. 
 
LOCATION OF SUBJECT SITE: 1982 Kane Road  

 

 LOT SECTION D.L. TOWNSHIP DISTRICT PLAN 

 
LEGAL 
DESCRIPTION: 

1 33  26 ODYD 4043 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SCOPE OF APPROVAL 
 
This Permit applies to and only to those lands within the Municipality as described above, and any and all buildings, 
structures and other development thereon. 
 
This Permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the Bylaws of the Municipality applicable thereto, except as 
specifically varied or supplemented by this Permit, noted in the Terms and Conditions below. 
 
Applicants for Development and Development Variance Permit should be aware that the issuance of a Permit limits 
the applicant to be in strict compliance with regulations of the Zoning Bylaw or Subdivision Control Bylaw unless 
specific Variances have been authorized by the Permit.  No implied Variances from bylaw provisions shall be granted 
by virtue of drawing notations which are inconsistent with bylaw provisions and which may not have been identified 
as required Variances by the applicant or City staff. 
 

 

1. TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 
 

a) The dimensions and siting of the building to be constructed on the land be in general accordance with   
Schedule “A”; 
 

b) The exterior design and finish of the building to be constructed on the land be in general accordance with 
Schedule "B"; 

 
c) Landscaping to be provided on the land be in general accordance with Schedule "C"; 

 
THAT the variances to the following sections of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 
 

Section 14.3.5 – Development Regulations 

To vary the front yard setback from 3.0 m to 1.5 m; and  

Section 14.3.6 – Other Regulations 

To vary the parking requirements from 63 parking stalls to 61 parking stalls. 
 

172



 - 2 - Permit No. DP14-0192 & DVP14-0241 
 
 

 

 
 
2. PERFORMANCE SECURITY:  

 

As a condition of the issuance of this Permit, Council is holding the security set out below to ensure that 
development is carried out in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Permit.  Should any interest be 
earned upon the security, it shall accrue to the Permittee and be paid to the Permittee if the security is returned.  
The condition of the posting of the security is that should the Permittee fail to carry out the development hereby 
authorized, according to the terms and conditions of this Permit within the time provided, the Municipality may use 
the security to carry out the work by its servants, agents or contractors, and any surplus shall be paid over to the 
Permittee, or should the Permittee carry out the development Permitted by this Permit within the time set out 
above, the security shall be returned to the Permittee.  There is filed accordingly: 

 
 (a) Cash; OR 
 (b) A Certified Cheque; OR 
 (c) An Irrevocable Letter of Credit in the amount of  $33,586.51       .   
 
 Before any bond or security required under this Permit is reduced or released, the Developer will provide the City 

with a statutory declaration certifying that all labour, material, workers' compensation and other taxes and costs 
have been paid. 
 

4. DEVELOPMENT: 
 
 The land described herein shall be developed strictly in accordance with the terms and conditions and 

provisions of this Permit and any plans and specifications attached to this Permit which shall form a part 
hereof. 

 
 If the Permittee does not commence the development Permitted by this Permit within one year of the date of 

this Permit, this Permit shall lapse. 
 
 This Permit is not transferable unless specifically permitted by the Municipality.  The authorization to transfer 

the Permit shall, if deemed acceptable, be granted by Council resolution. 
 
 THIS Permit IS NOT A BUILDING Permit. 
 
5. APPLICANT'S AGREEMENT: 
 
 I hereby declare that all the above statements and the information contained in the material submitted in 

support of this Permit are to the best of my belief, true and correct in all respects.  Upon issuance of the 
Permit for me by the Municipality, then in such case, I covenant and agree to save harmless and effectually 
indemnify the Municipality against: 

 
 (a) All actions and proceedings, costs, damages, expenses, claims, and demands whatsoever and by 

whomsoever brought, by reason of the Municipality granting to me the said Permit. 
 
 (b) All costs, expenses, claims that may be incurred by the Municipality if the construction by me of 

engineering or other types of works as called for by the Permit results in damages to any property 
owned in whole or in part by the Municipality or which the Municipality by duty or custom is obliged, 
directly or indirectly in any way or to any degree, to construct, repair, or maintain. 

 
 I further covenant and agree that should I be granted a Development Permit or Development Variance Permit, 

the Municipality may withhold the granting of any occupancy Permit for the occupancy and/or use of any 
building or part thereof constructed upon the hereinbefore referred to land until all of the engineering works 
or other works called for by the Permit have been completed to the satisfaction of the Municipal Engineer and 
Divisional Director of Community Planning & Real Estate. 

 
Should there be any change in ownership or legal description of the property, I undertake to notify the 
Community Planning & Real Estate Department immediately to avoid any unnecessary delay in processing the 
application. 

 

173



 - 3 - Permit No. DP14-0192 & DVP14-0241 
 
 

 

I HEREBY UNDERSTAND AND AGREE TO ALL THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS SPECIFIED IN THIS PERMIT. 
 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Signature of Owner/Authorized Agent 
 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Print Name in Bold Letters 
 

______________________________________________ 
Date 
 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Telephone No. 
 

 
 
 
 
6.APPROVALS: 
 

ISSUED BY THE URBAN PLANNING DEPARTMENT OF THE CITY OF KELOWNA THE ___ DAY OF ___________, 2014 BY THE 

DIVISIONAL DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY PLANNING & REAL ESTATE. 

 

 

 

__________________________________________________ 
Doug Gilchrist 
Divisional Director of Community Planning & Real Estate  

 

174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: November 19, 2014 

RIM No. 0940-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (LB) 

Application: DVP14-0166 Owner: Jocelyn & Bradley Airey 

Address: 924 Fairway Crescent Applicant: Jocelyn & Bradley Airey 

Subject: 2014-11-04 Report - DVP14-0166 - 924 Fairway Cres 

Existing OCP Designation: S2RES – Single / Two Unit Residential 

Existing Zone: RU1 – Large Lot Housing 

    

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council NOT authorize the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP14-0166, Lot 
B, Section 29, Township 26, ODYD, Plan 22497, located on 924 Fairway Crescent, Kelowna, BC. 

2.0 Purpose 

To consider staff’s recommendation to NOT authorize a Development Variance Permit application 
to vary the front yard from 6.0 m permitted to 3.0 m proposed. 

3.0 Urban Planning 

Urban Planning staff do not support the requested variance to reduce the front yard setback to 
accommodate an addition to the existing attached garage. The minimum regulation for a garage 
having vehicular entry from the front is intended to limit land use conflicts and safety concerns. 
On driveways less than 6 m in length, vehicles often overhang onto the road right-of-way. The 
applicant inquired about this variance in early 2014 and was informed that staff would not 
support a front yard variance request. 

On the subject property, the property line / end of the driveway immediately abuts the paved 
road surface without a landscaped boulevard as buffer. Reducing the front yard setback to 3 m 
would not allow for a vehicle to park on the driveway without overhanging onto the road. 
Although Fairway Crescent has a wide right-of-way and paved boulevard in this section, this 
presents a safety concern. 

The existing dwelling is already closer to the front property line than adjacent properties and the 
proposed addition would bring it still closer, affecting the character of the neighbourhood. 
Furthermore, the proposed garage length is approximately 9.75 m, which is not sufficient to 
accommodate two vehicles with tandem parking. Therefore, the minimum parking requirements 
for a single family residential use would not be met.  

183



DVP14-0166 – Page 2 

 
 

Staff discussed other options with the applicant to achieve the desired increase in garage space, 
including extending the garage towards the rear of the house. Due to the basement and covered 
deck at the rear of the property, this option was not reasonable. The applicant also proposed 
different driveway configurations, but these could not address access and safety concerns. 

In accordance with Council Policy 367 – Public Notification & Consultation for Development 
Applications, the applicant has undertaken efforts to contact the neighbouring properties within 
50 m of the subject property. One neighbour expressed concerns that the application may set a 
precedent. To date, staff have not been contacted with any questions or concerns regarding the 
application. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Project Description 

The applicant is seeking to build an addition to extend the existing single car attached garage 
towards the front property line, along Fairway Crescent. The intent is to create additional 
storage and parking space to increase the home’s functionality. 

4.2 Site Context 

The subject property is located on the west side of Fairway Crescent in the Glenmore-Clifton-
Dilworth sector. The property is designated S2RES – Single / Two Unit Residential in the Official 
Community Plan and is within the Permanent Growth Boundary. 

The property backs onto the Kelowna Golf and Country Club and is otherwise within a low density 
residential area. 

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North RU1 – Large Lot Housing Single family dwelling 

East RU1 – Large Lot Housing Single family dwelling 

South RU1 – Large Lot Housing Single family dwelling 

West P3 – Parks and Open Space Kelowna Golf and Country Club 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

184



DVP14-0166 – Page 3 

 
 

Subject Property Map: 924 Fairway Crescent 

 

4.3 Zoning Analysis Table 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RU1 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 
Lot Area 550 m2 1,102 m2 

Lot Width 16.5 m 19.54 m 

Lot Depth 30.0 m 38.09 m 

Development Regulations 
Site Coverage (buildings) 40% 20% 

Site Coverage (buildings, 
driveways & parking) 

50% 21.9% 

Height 9.5 m 4.16 m 

Front Yard 6.0 m 3.0 m  

Side Yard (south) m m 

Side Yard (north) 2.0 m 2.18 m 

Rear Yard 7.5 m Meets requirements 

 Indicates a requested variance to reduce the front yard from a garage having vehicular entry from the front from 6.0 m 

permitted to 3.0 m proposed. 

5.0 Technical Comments 

5.1 Building & Permitting Department 

 Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit 
applications. 

5.2 Development Engineering Department 

 See attached memorandum, dated September 18, 2014. 

185



DVP14-0166 – Page 4 

 
 

6.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received:  September 5, 2014  
Date Public Consultation Completed: July 10, 2014  
 

7.0 Alternate Recommendation  

THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP14-0166, for Lot B, 
Section 29, Township 26, ODYD, Plan 22497, located on 924 Fairway Crescent, Kelowna, BC; 

AND THAT a variance to the following section of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 

 Section 13.1.6(c): RU1 – Large Lot Housing Development Regulations 

 To vary the front yard from 6.0 m permitted to 3.0 m proposed. 

Report prepared by: 

     
Laura Bentley, Planner 
 

Reviewed by:    Lindsey Ganczar, Urban Planning Supervisor 
 

Reviewed by:    Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Doug Gilchrist, Divisional Director, Community Planning & 
Real Estate 

 

Attachments:  

Subject Property Map 
Site Plan – Schedule A 
Floor Plan – Schedule A 
Elevations – Schedule B 
Colour Board – Schedule B 
Site Photo and Rendering 
Development Engineering Memorandum 
Draft Development Variance Permit 

186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



CITY OF KELOWNA 
 
APPROVED ISSUANCE OF A: 
 

 Development Variance Permit No.:        DVP14-0166 
    

 
EXISTING ZONING DESIGNATION: 
 
DEVLOPMENT VARIANCE PERMIT: 
 

 
RU1 – Large Lot Housing 
 
To vary the minimum front yard from 6.0 m permitted to 3.0 m 
proposed. 
 

 

 
ISSUED TO:                         Jocelyn & Bradley Airey 
 
LOCATION OF SUBJECT SITE: 924 Fairway Crescent 
 

 

 LOT SECTION D.L. TOWNSHIP DISTRICT PLAN 

 
LEGAL 
DESCRIPTION: 

B 29 - 26 ODYD 22497 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SCOPE OF APPROVAL 
 
This Permit applies to and only to those lands within the Municipality as described above, and any and all buildings, 
structures and other development thereon. 
 
This Permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the Bylaws of the Municipality applicable thereto, except as 
specifically varied or supplemented by this Permit, noted in the Terms and Conditions below. 
 
Applicants for Development and Development Variance Permit should be aware that the issuance of a Permit limits 
the applicant to be in strict compliance with regulations of the Zoning Bylaw or Subdivision Control Bylaw unless 
specific Variances have been authorized by the Permit.  No implied Variances from bylaw provisions shall be granted 
by virtue of drawing notations which are inconsistent with bylaw provisions and which may not have been identified 
as required Variances by the applicant or City staff. 
 

 

1. TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 
 

THAT a variance to the following section of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 

 

Section 13.1.6: RU1 – Large Lot Housing Development Regulations  

To vary the minimum front yard from 6.0 m permitted to 3.0 m proposed. 

 
2. PERFORMANCE SECURITY:  

 

As a condition of the issuance of this Permit, Council is holding the security set out below to ensure that 
development is carried out in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Permit.  Should any interest be 
earned upon the security, it shall accrue to the Permittee and be paid to the Permittee if the security is returned.  
The condition of the posting of the security is that should the Permittee fail to carry out the development hereby 
authorized, according to the terms and conditions of this Permit within the time provided, the Municipality may use 
the security to carry out the work by its servants, agents or contractors, and any surplus shall be paid over to the 
Permittee, or should the Permittee carry out the development Permitted by this Permit within the time set out 
above, the security shall be returned to the Permittee.  There is filed accordingly: 

 
 
 

194



 - 2 - Permit No. DVP14-0166 
 
 
 (a) Cash in the amount of $        N/A                . 
 (b) A Certified Cheque in the amount of ____N/A_____. 
 (c) An Irrevocable Letter of Credit in the amount of     N/A     .   
 
 Before any bond or security required under this Permit is reduced or released, the Developer will provide the City 

with a statutory declaration certifying that all labour, material, workers' compensation and other taxes and costs 
have been paid. 
 

4. DEVELOPMENT: 
 
 The land described herein shall be developed strictly in accordance with the terms and conditions and 

provisions of this Permit and any plans and specifications attached to this Permit which shall form a part 
hereof. 

 
 If the Permittee does not commence the development Permitted by this Permit within one year of the date of 

this Permit, this Permit shall lapse. 
 
 This Permit is not transferable unless specifically permitted by the Municipality.  The authorization to transfer 

the Permit shall, if deemed acceptable, be granted by Council resolution. 
 
 THIS Permit IS NOT A BUILDING Permit. 
 
5. APPLICANT'S AGREEMENT: 
 
 I hereby declare that all the above statements and the information contained in the material submitted in 

support of this Permit are to the best of my belief, true and correct in all respects.  Upon issuance of the 
Permit for me by the Municipality, then in such case, I covenant and agree to save harmless and effectually 
indemnify the Municipality against: 

 
 (a) All actions and proceedings, costs, damages, expenses, claims, and demands whatsoever and by 

whomsoever brought, by reason of the Municipality granting to me the said Permit. 
 
 (b) All costs, expenses, claims that may be incurred by the Municipality if the construction by me of 

engineering or other types of works as called for by the Permit results in damages to any property 
owned in whole or in part by the Municipality or which the Municipality by duty or custom is obliged, 
directly or indirectly in any way or to any degree, to construct, repair, or maintain. 

 
 I further covenant and agree that should I be granted a Development Permit or Development Variance Permit, 

the Municipality may withhold the granting of any occupancy Permit for the occupancy and/or use of any 
building or part thereof constructed upon the hereinbefore referred to land until all of the engineering works 
or other works called for by the Permit have been completed to the satisfaction of the Municipal Engineer and 
Divisional Director of Community Planning & Real Estate. 

 
Should there be any change in ownership or legal description of the property, I undertake to notify the 
Community Planning & Real Estate Department immediately to avoid any unnecessary delay in processing the 
application. 
 
I HEREBY UNDERSTAND AND AGREE TO ALL THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS SPECIFIED IN THIS PERMIT. 
 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Signature of Owner/Authorized Agent 
 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Print Name in Bold Letters 
 

______________________________________________ 
Date 
 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Telephone No. 
 

 
 
 

195



 - 3 - Permit No. DVP14-0166 
 
 
6. APPROVALS: 
 

DEVELOPMENT VARIANCE PERMIT AUTHORIZED BY THE COUNCIL ON THE 9TH DAY OF DECEMBER 2014. 

ISSUED BY THE URBAN PLANNING DEPARTMENT OF THE CITY OF KELOWNA THE ___ DAY OF DECEMBER 2014, BY THE 

DIVISIONAL DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY PLANNING & REAL ESTATE. 

 

 

 

 

__________________________________________________ 
Doug Gilchrist 
Divisional Director of Community Planning & Real Estate  

 

196



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: November 19, 2014 

RIM No. 0940-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (TY) 

Application: DVP14-0170 Owner: Joshua Richmond 

Address: 1085 Westpoint Drive Applicant: Joshua Richmond 

Subject: Report to Council DVP14-0170 1085 Westpoint Dr  

Existing OCP Designation: S2Res – Single / Two Unit Residential 

Existing Zone: RU1 – Large Lot Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorize the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP14-0170, for Lot 
12, Section 31, Township 29, ODYD Plan KAP87220, located at 1085 Westpoint Drive, Kelowna, 
BC, subject to the following: 

1. The dimensions and siting of the building to be constructed on the land be in general 
accordance with Schedule “A”; 

2. The exterior design and finish of the building to be constructed on the land be in general 
accordance with Schedule “B”; 

AND THAT the variance to the following section Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 

Section 13.1.6 (d) - RU1 Development Regulations 

To vary the minimum permitted side yard setback from 2.0m required to 0.0m proposed.  

AND FURTHER THAT the applicant be required to complete the above-noted condition within 1 
year of Council’s approval of the Development Variance Permit Application, in order for the 
permit to be issued.  

2.0 Purpose  

To seek a Development Variance Permit to vary the side yard setback along the east property line 
from 2.0m required to 0.0m proposed. 

3.0 Urban Planning  

The Urban Planning department supports the requested variance to reduce the east side yard 
setback. The proposed variance is to allow a wall along the property line to create an inner 
courtyard within the main dwelling. The inner courtyard is designed to have a 1.8m high opaque 

197



DVP14-0170 – Page 2 

 
 

wall that supports an arbor structure. This wall runs along the property line for a length of 6.6m. 
This area and arbor structure connect to the main dwelling on three sides, requiring a variance 
from 2.0m setback to 0.0m setback to allow the wall to be located on the property line.  

The arbour ties in with the roof line which is set back 2.3m from the property line. The 
application complies with all other requirements of the Zoning Bylaw such as site coverage, 
remaining setbacks and no-build covenants.  

To address the relationship with the neighbouring property to the east, staff worked with the 
applicant to ensure that the exterior wall on the property line is not higher than an allowed 
fence height in the same proposed location in a residential zone.  

Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 Section 7.5 indicates that screen fences shall be consistent with the 
quality of building design and materials of the principal building and that a fence maximum 
height in this residential zone is not to exceed 2.0m in height. The opaque portion of the 
proposed courtyard wall is 1.8m in height, constructed to match the design and materials of the 
principal dwelling.  

The proposed expansion that encroaches into the side yard setback along the east property line 
allows the homeowner a private courtyard space. The rear yard where this would otherwise be 
located has a no-disturb covenant and Wildland Fire Protection that runs near the exterior of the 
dwelling.  

In accordance with Council Policy 367 – Public Notification & Consultation for Development 
Variance Applications, the applicant has distributed notification information to the neighbouring 
properties. To date no concerns have been brought to the attention of City staff.  

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

The subject property is in a subdivision with no-disturb covenants. There is a statutory right of 
way in the rear yard of the subject property for utility purposes along with a no-disturb covenant 
protecting the existing slope and mature Ponderosa Pine trees.  

4.2 Project Description 

The applicant is proposing a variance from 2.0m to 0.0m setback for the construction of a wall 
along the east property line for a total length of 6.55m. This opaque wall is 1.8m high 
constructed of stucco to match the dwelling. This wall supports a metal arbour structure that 
reaches a total of 3.2m in height.  

4.3 Site Context 

The subject property is located at the eastern portion of Westpoint Drive in the North Mission – 
Crawford sector. The property is designated S2RES – Single / Two Unit Residential in the official 
Community Plan is within the Permanent Growth Boundary. The area surrounding the property is 
RU1 - Large Lot Housing.  

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North RU1 Large Lot Housing Single Family Dwelling Lot 

East RU1 Large lot Housing Single Family Dwelling Lot 

South RU1 Large lot Housing Undeveloped Land 

West RU1 Large Lot Housing Single Family Dwelling Lot 

198



DVP14-0170 – Page 3 

 
 

Subject Property Map:  1085 Westpoint Drive  

 
 

4.4 Zoning Analysis Table 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RU1 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 

Lot Area 550m2 935m2 

Lot Width 16.5m 22.4m 

Lot Depth 30m 39.8m 

Development Regulations 

Height 9.5m 8.4m 

Front Yard 4.5m to house 6.0m to garage 4.5m to house 6.0m to garage 

Side Yard (west) 2.3m 2.3m 

Side Yard (east) 2.0m 0.0m 

Rear Yard 7.5m 15.5m 

Other Regulations 

Maximum site coverage 40% 33% 

Maximum site coverage with 
driveways and parking 

50% 41% 

 Indicates a requested side setback variance  

  

199



DVP14-0170 – Page 4 

 
 

5.0 Technical Comments  

5.1 Building & Permitting Department 

No comment. 

5.2 Development Engineering Department 

See attached Development Engineering Memo dated September 16,2014. 

5.3 Fortis BC Energy Inc - Electric 

There are primary distribution facilities along Westpoint Drive. The applicant is responsible for 
costs associated with any change to the subject property’s existing service, if any, as well as the 
provision of appropriate land rights where required. Otherwise, FortisBC Inc. (Electric) has no 
concerns with this circulation. 

6.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received:  September 9, 2014  
Date Public Consultation Completed: November 4, 2014  
 

Report prepared by: 

     
Tracey Yuzik, Planner 
 
 

Reviewed by:    Lindsey Ganczar, Urban Planning Supervisor 
 

Reviewed by:    Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
 

Attachments: 

Subject Property Map 
Schedule “A” - Site Plan 
Schedule “B” - Elevations 
Development Engineering Memorandum 
Neighbourhood Consultation Documentation 
Draft Development Variance Permit DVP14-0170 
 

200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



CITY OF KELOWNA 
 
APPROVED ISSUANCE OF A: 
 

 Development Variance Permit No.:        DVP14-0170 
    

 
EXISTING ZONING DESIGNATION: 
 
DEVELOPMENT VARIANCE PERMIT: 
 

 
RU1 – Large Lot Housing 
 
To vary the minimum west side yard for a 1 or 1 ½ storey portion of a 
building from 2.0 m permitted to 0.0 m proposed. 
 

 

 
ISSUED TO:                         Richmond Custom Homes Ltd. 
 
LOCATION OF SUBJECT SITE: 1085 Wespoint Dr.  
 

 

 LOT SECTION TOWNSHIP DISTRICT PLAN 

 
LEGAL 
DESCRIPTION: 

12 31 29 ODYD KAP87220 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SCOPE OF APPROVAL 
 
This Permit applies to and only to those lands within the Municipality as described above, and any and all buildings, 
structures and other development thereon. 
 
This Permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the Bylaws of the Municipality applicable thereto, except as 
specifically varied or supplemented by this Permit, noted in the Terms and Conditions below. 
 
Applicants for Development and Development Variance Permit should be aware that the issuance of a Permit limits 
the applicant to be in strict compliance with regulations of the Zoning Bylaw or Subdivision Control Bylaw unless 
specific Variances have been authorized by the Permit.  No implied Variances from bylaw provisions shall be granted 
by virtue of drawing notations which are inconsistent with bylaw provisions and which may not have been identified 
as required Variances by the applicant or City staff. 
 

 

1. TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 
 
a) The dimensions and siting of the building to be constructed on the land be in general accordance with 

Schedule ”A”; 
 

b) The exterior design and finish of the building to be constructed on the land be in general accordance 
with Schedule “B”; 

 
THAT variance to the following section of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 

Section 13.1.6(d): RU1 – Large Lot Housing Development Regulations  

To vary the minimum side yard for a 1 or 1 ½ storey portion of a building from 2.0 m permitted to     

0.0 m proposed. 

 

AND FURTHER THAT the applicant be required to complete the above noted condition within one year of 

Council’s approval of the Development Variance Permit Application, in order for the permit to be issued.   

 
2. DEVELOPMENT: 
 
 The land described herein shall be developed strictly in accordance with the terms and conditions and 

provisions of this Permit and any plans and specifications attached to this Permit which shall form a part 
hereof. 

216



 - 2 - Permit No. DVP14-0147 
 
 
 If the Permittee does not commence the development Permitted by this Permit within one year of the date of 

this Permit, this Permit shall lapse. 
 
 This Permit is not transferable unless specifically permitted by the Municipality.  The authorization to transfer 

the Permit shall, if deemed acceptable, be granted by Council resolution. 
 
 THIS Permit IS NOT A BUILDING Permit. 
 
3. PERFORMANCE SECURITY: not applicable. 

 
4. APPLICANT'S AGREEMENT: 
 
 I hereby declare that all the above statements and the information contained in the material submitted in 

support of this Permit are to the best of my belief, true and correct in all respects.  Upon issuance of the 
Permit for me by the Municipality, then in such case, I covenant and agree to save harmless and effectually 
indemnify the Municipality against: 

 
 (a) All actions and proceedings, costs, damages, expenses, claims, and demands whatsoever and by 

whomsoever brought, by reason of the Municipality granting to me the said Permit. 
 
 (b) All costs, expenses, claims that may be incurred by the Municipality if the construction by me of 

engineering or other types of works as called for by the Permit results in damages to any property 
owned in whole or in part by the Municipality or which the Municipality by duty or custom is obliged, 
directly or indirectly in any way or to any degree, to construct, repair, or maintain. 

 
 I further covenant and agree that should I be granted a Development Permit or Development Variance Permit, 

the Municipality may withhold the granting of any occupancy Permit for the occupancy and/or use of any 
building or part thereof constructed upon the hereinbefore referred to land until all of the engineering works 
or other works called for by the Permit have been completed to the satisfaction of the Municipal Engineer and 
Divisional Director of Community Planning & Real Estate. 

 
Should there be any change in ownership or legal description of the property, I undertake to notify the 
Community Planning & Real Estate Department immediately to avoid any unnecessary delay in processing the 
application. 

 
I HEREBY UNDERSTAND AND AGREE TO ALL THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS SPECIFIED IN THIS PERMIT. 
 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Signature of Owner/Authorized Agent 
 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Print Name in Bold Letters 
 

______________________________________________ 
Date 
 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Telephone No. 
 

 
 
 
6. APPROVALS: 
 

DEVELOPMENT VARIANCE PERMIT AUTHORIZED BY THE COUNCIL ON THE  ________ DAY OF _______________ 20_____. 

 

ISSUED BY THE URBAN PLANNING DEPARTMENT OF THE CITY OF KELOWNA THE _______ DAY OF ______________ 20_____, 

BY THE DIVISIONAL DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY PLANNING & REAL ESTATE. 

 

 

__________________________________________________ 
Doug Gilchrist 
Divisional Director of Community Planning & Real Estate  

217



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: November 18, 2014 

RIM No. 0940-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (LK) 

Application: DVP14-0229 Owner: 
Peter Schumann & Nada 
Critchlow 

Address: 3358 Larkspur Court Applicant: 
Kent-MacPherson Appraisals 
Inc. 

Subject: 2014 11 19 - DVP14-0229 - Council - 3358 Larkspur Crt  

Existing OCP Designation: S2RES – Single / Two Unit Residential 

Existing Zone: RR2 – Rural Residential 2 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Variance Permit No.DVP14-0229, for Lot 9 
Section 3 Township 26 ODYD Plan KAP62126, located on 3358 Larkspur Court, Kelowna, BC; 

AND THAT variances to the following sections of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted:  

 Section 7.5.3: Fencing and Retaining Walls  
To vary the maximum fence height from 2.0 m permitted to 3.1 m proposed. 

2.0 Purpose  

To obtain approval for a Development Variance Permit to vary the height of a fence from 2.0 m 
maximum height to 3.1 m proposed. 

3.0 Urban Planning  

Urban Planning staff supports the maximum fence height variance. The owners of the subject 
parcel are proposing to construct a tennis court adjacent to the west property line of the parcel. 
The proposed fence height surrounding the court is 3.1 m or 10 feet in height, which is the 
customary height used in tennis court construction. Only that portion along the west property 
line requires the height variance.  

  

218



DVP14-0229 – Page 2 

 
 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Project Description 

The subject parcel is a large rural residential lot located in the Southeast Kelowna Sector. The 
property is 1.06 acres in size. The parcel’s primary access and addressing is via a lane from 
Larkspur Court, with secondary access via a driveway from Water Road. 

In accordance with Council Policy 367 – Public Notification & Consultation for Development 
Applications, the applicant has provided notification of the proposed Development Variance 
Permit application to neighbouring properties within 50 m of the subject site. To date, City staff 
has not been contacted with any objections or concerns regarding the proposed variance. Letters 
of support from 8 surrounding properties were submitted with the initial application. 

4.2 Site Context 

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North A1 – Agricultural 1 Orchard 

East RR2 – Rural Residential 2 Residential 

South RR3 – Rural Residential 3 Residential 

West RR2 – Rural Residential 2 Residential 

 

Subject Property Map: 3358 Larkspur Court 
 

 
  

219



DVP14-0229 – Page 3 

 
 

4.3 Zoning Analysis Table 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA 
LANDSCAPING AND 

SCREENING REQUIREMENTS 
PROPOSAL 

Development Regulations 
Fence Height 2.0 m max 3.1m proposed  

 Indicates a requested variance to…   

5.0 Current Development Policies  

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Development Process 

Compact Urban Form.1 Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing 
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done by 
increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 metre 
walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) through 
development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 5.3) in particular 
and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use Map 4.1. 

6.0 Technical Comments  

6.1 Development Engineering Department 

See Attached Memorandum dated November 17, 2014 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received:  November 4, 2014  

Report prepared by: 

     
Lydia Korolchuk, Planner 
 
 

Reviewed by:    Lindsey Ganczar, Urban Planning Supervisor 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
 

Attachments:  

Subject Property Map 
Site Plan – Schedule A 
Development Engineering Memorandum 
Draft Development Variance Permit 

                                                
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.2.3 (Development Process Chapter). 

220



221



222



CITY OF KELOWNA 
 
APPROVED ISSUANCE OF A: 
 

 Development Permit No.:  DVP14-0229 

 
EXISTING ZONING DESIGNATION: 
 
WITHIN DEVELOPMENT PERMIT AREA: 
 

 
RR2 – Rural Residential 2 
 
Revitalization Development Permit Area 
 

 

 
ISSUED TO:         Peter & Nada Schumann 
 
LOCATION OF SUBJECT SITE:  3358 Larkspur Court 
 
 

 

 LOT Section Township DISTRICT PLAN 

 
LEGAL 
DESCRIPTION: 
 

9 3 26 ODYD KAP62126 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SCOPE OF APPROVAL 
 
This Permit applies to and only to those lands within the Municipality as described above, and any and all buildings, 
structures and other development thereon. 
 
This Permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the Bylaws of the Municipality applicable thereto, except as 
specifically varied or supplemented by this Permit, noted in the Terms and Conditions below. 
 
Applicants for a Heritage Alteration Permit should be aware that the issuance of a Permit limits the applicant to be 
in strict compliance with regulations of the Zoning Bylaw or Subdivision Control Bylaw unless specific Variances have 
been authorized by the Permit.  No implied Variances from bylaw provisions shall be granted by virtue of drawing 
notations which are inconsistent with bylaw provisions and which may not have been identified as required Variances 
by the applicant or City staff. 

 
1. TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 

 
a) Landscaping to be provided on the land be in general accordance with Schedule “A”. 

 
 

2. The development shall commence by and in accordance with an approved Building Permit within ONE YEAR of 

the date of the Municipal Council authorization resolution. 

 
 

3. DEVELOPMENT: 
 
 The land described herein shall be developed strictly in accordance with the terms and conditions and 

provisions of this Permit and any plans and specifications attached to this Permit which shall form a part 
hereof. 

 
 If the Permittee does not commence the development Permitted by this Permit within one year of the date of 

this Permit, this Permit shall lapse. 
 
 This Permit is not transferrable unless specifically Permitted by the Municipality.  The authorization to transfer 

the Permit shall, if deemed acceptable, be granted by Council resolution. 
 

223



- 2 - 
DP14-0229 

 
 THIS Permit IS NOT A BUILDING Permit. 
 

4. PERFORMANCE SECURITY: 
 
 As a condition of the issuance of this Permit, Council is holding the security set out below to ensure that 

development is carried out in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Permit.  Should any interest be 
earned upon the security, it shall accrue to the Permittee and be paid to the Permittee if the security is 
returned.  The condition of the posting of the security is that should the Permittee fail to carry out the 
development hereby authorized, according to the terms and conditions of this Permit within the time provided, 
the Municipality may use the security to carry out the work by its servants, agents or contractors, and any 
surplus shall be paid over to the Permittee, or should the Permittee carry out the development Permitted by 
this Permit within the time set out above, the security shall be returned to the Permittee.  There is filed 
accordingly: 

 
 (a) Cash in the amount of $                 N/A                           . 
 (b) A Certified Cheque in the amount of $                  N/A                         . 
 (c) An Irrevocable Letter of Credit in the amount of $                    N/A                  . 
 
 Before any bond or security required under this Permit is reduced or released, the Developer will provide the 

City with a statutory declaration certifying that all labour, material, workers' compensation and other taxes 
and costs have been paid. 

 
5. APPLICANT'S AGREEMENT: 

 
 I hereby declare that all the above statements and the information contained in the material submitted in 

support of this Permit are to the best of my belief, true and correct in all respects.  Upon issuance of the 
Permit for me by the Municipality, then in such case, I covenant and agree to save harmless and effectually 
indemnify the Municipality against: 

 
 (a) All actions and proceedings, costs, damages, expenses, claims, and demands whatsoever and by 

whomsoever brought, by reason of the Municipality granting to me the said Permit. 
 
 (b) All costs, expenses, claims that may be incurred by the Municipality if the construction by me of 

engineering or other types of works as called for by the Permit results in damages to any property 
owned in whole or in part by the Municipality or which the Municipality by duty or custom is obliged, 
directly or indirectly in any way or to any degree, to construct, repair, or maintain. 

 
 I further covenant and agree that should I be granted a Development Permit or Development Variance Permit, 

the Municipality may withhold the granting of any occupancy Permit for the occupancy and/or use of any 
building or part thereof constructed upon the hereinbefore referred to land until all of the engineering works 
or other works called for by the Permit have been completed to the satisfaction of the Municipal Engineer and 
Director of Planning & Development Services. 

 
 

224



- 3 - 
DP14-0229 

 
 
 
 
Should there be any change in ownership or legal description of the property, I undertake to notify the Land Use 
Management Department immediately to avoid any unnecessary delay in processing the application. 
 
I HEREBY UNDERSTAND AND AGREE TO ALL THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS SPECIFIED IN THIS PERMIT. 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________ 
Signature of Owner/Authorized Agent 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Print Name in Bold Letters 
 

______________________________________________ 
Date 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Telephone No. 
 

 
 
 
6. APPROVALS: 
 
 
ISSUED BY THE URBAN PLANNING DEPARTMENT OF THE CITY OF KELOWNA THE _____ DAY OF NOVEMBER 2014, BY THE DIVISIONAL 

DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY PLANNING & REAL ESTATE SERVICES. 

 

 

 

 

__________________________________________________ 
Doug Gilchrist,  
Divisional Director Community Planning & Real Estate 
 

225


	Agenda
	3. Draft Minutes - November 4, 2014 Public Hearing.pdf
	3. Draft Minutes - November 4, 2014 Regular Meeting.pdf
	4.1 Bylaw No. 11025 (Z14-0044).pdf
	4.2 Bylaw No. 11026 (TA14-0019).pdf
	4.3 Bylaw No. 11027 (OCP14-0019).pdf
	4.4 Bylaw No. 11028 (Z14-0036).pdf
	4.5 Bylaw No. 11029 (OCP14-0021).pdf
	4.6 Bylaw No. 11030 (Z14-0041).pdf
	4.7 Bylaw No. 11031 (OCP14-0015).pdf
	4.8 Bylaw No. 11032 (OCP14-0011).pdf
	4.9 Bylaw No. 11033 (Z14-0026).pdf
	6.1 2014 12 09 Report LL14-0014 1250 Ellis St .docx
	6.1 2014 12 09 Attachments LL14-0014 1250 Ellis St.pdf
	7.1 2014 12 08 Attachments DP14-0183 1250 Ellis St.pdf
	7.1 2014 12 08 Report DP14-0183 1250 Ellis St.docx
	7.2 2014 12 09 Report DVP14-0219  1511 Tower Ranch Drive.docx
	7.2 2014 12 09 Attachments DVP14-0219 1511 Tower Ranch Dr.pdf
	7.3 2014 12 09 Report TUP14-0005 2092 Enterprise Way.docx
	7.3 2014 12 09 Attachments TUP14-0005 2092 Enterprise Way.pdf
	7.4 2014 12 09 Report DVP14-0233 204 Poplar Point Dr .docx
	7.4 2014 12 09 Attachments DVP14-0233 204 Poplar Point Dr.pdf
	7.5 2014 12 09 Report  DVP14-0179  1886 Parkview Cres.docx
	7.5 2014 12 09 Attachments DVP14-0179 1886 Parkview Cres.pdf - Adobe Acrobat.pdf
	7.6 2014 12 09 Report DP14-0192 DVP14-0241.docx
	7.6 2014 12 09 Attachments DP14-0192 DVP14-0241.pdf
	7.7 2014-11-04 Report - DVP14-0166 - 924 Fairway Cres.docx
	7.7 2014-12-09 attachments - DVP14-0166 - 924 Fairway Crescent.pdf
	7.7 2014-12-09 Permit - DVP14-0166 - 924 Fairway Cres.docx
	7.8 Report to Council DVP14-0170 1085 Westpoint Dr.docx
	7.8 2014 11 19 - DVP14-0170 - Attachments - 1085 Westpoint Dr.pdf
	7.8 Permit - DVP14-0170 - 1085 Westpoint Dr.docx
	7.9 2014 11 19 - DVP14-0229 - Council - 3358 Larkspur Crt.docx
	7.9 2014 11 19 - DVP14-0229 - attachment - 3358 Larkspur Crt.pdf
	7.9 2014 11 19 - DVP14-0229 - Permit- 3358 Larkspur Crt.doc

